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WASHINGTON MUTUAL, INC., et al.

1                      P R O C E E D I N G S

2          THE CLERK:  All rise.  You may be seated.

3          THE COURT:  Good morning.  Could the parties on the

4 phone mute their phones, please.

5          MR. STROCHAK:  Good morning, Your Honor.  Adam

6 Strochak, Weil Gotshal & Manges for the debtors.  With me today

7 is my colleague Jarrod Wright and Mark Collins from Richards

8 Slayton and Finger.

9          Late into the evening yesterday, we've had

10 negotiations toward some compromises that will hopefully

11 streamline the confirmation process.  What we would like to do

12 now is address the Tranquility Rule 9019 motion which was item

13 fourteen on today's agenda.  And then with the Court's

14 indulgence, take a brief pause, some of the parties are

15 finalizing documentation and then hopefully after a brief

16 pause, be able to come back and have a much more streamlined

17 confirmation proceeding.

18          THE COURT:  All right.

19          MR. STROCHAK:  So, the other matters on the agenda

20 that preceded confirmation, I think relate to the confirmation

21 proceedings; item thirteen, the motion of Mr. Duke and item

22 fifteen, the motion of Mr. Lam, I believe are confirmation

23 issues, so we would just push those and deal with them at

24 confirmation.

25          On the Tranquility Rule 9019 motion, Your Honor, this
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WASHINGTON MUTUAL, INC., et al.

1 obviously is our motion for approval of a settlement, a

2 stipulation of settlement with Tranquility.  I know Your Honor

3 is very familiar with the litigation, having heard much of it

4 already.  So, I'll keep the presentation very brief.  I do have

5 a short proffer of testimony in support of the settlement from

6 Mr. Goulding who is in the courtroom today and I can proceed

7 with that by proffer if Your Honor is comfortable with that.

8          THE COURT:  You may.

9          MR. STROCHAK:  Thank you.  I'll dispense with

10 qualifications because I know the Court is very familiar with

11 Mr. Goulding already from prior matters but just in brief

12 summary, Mr. Goulding is the treasurer of the debtors and a

13 director with Alvarez & Marsal.

14          By way of background on the stipulation and the

15 settlement, Mr. Goulding would testify that Tranquility timely

16 filed proof of claim number 2206 against Washington Mutual Inc.

17 in the amount of $49,603,057.24.  Tranquility's claims relate

18 to its purchase of approximately seventy-one million dollars in

19 mortgage-backed securities.  Tranquility alleged that WMI was

20 liable under Sections 25401, 25501, 25504 and 25504.1 of the

21 California Corporations Code and Sections 11 and 15 of the

22 Securities Act of 1933 in connection with alleged

23 misrepresentations and omissions in the offer and sale of

24 certain mortgage-backed securities.

25          The debtors objected to the Tranquility claim and
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WASHINGTON MUTUAL, INC., et al.

1 after briefing and argument on November 12, 2010, the Court

2 entered an order sustaining in part the debtors' objection and

3 granting Tranquility leave to file an amended proof of claim.

4          Mr. Goulding would further testify that on November

5 30, 2010, Tranquility did file an amended claim that was

6 assigned claim number 3925 containing similar allegations and

7 again alleging that WMI was liable under the California

8 Corporations Code and the Securities Act of 1933.

9          The debtors filed a supplemental objection on certain

10 legal issues and in December of last year, the Court entered an

11 order finding that Tranquility had sufficiently stated a claim

12 against the debtors and that the debtors had not stated a basis

13 for subordinating Tranquility's claim under Section 510(b) of

14 the Bankruptcy Code.

15          Mr. Goulding would further testify that subsequently,

16 the creditors committee filed a motion to alter or amend the

17 Court's ruling on subordination in which the debtors' joined

18 and he would further testify that the Court has not yet decided

19 the motion to amend.

20          After arms length negotiations with both sides

21 represented by counsel, the debtors and Tranquility reached an

22 agreement to resolve their dispute and to allow the Tranquility

23 claim in a significantly reduced amount.  Upon the effective

24 date of the parties' stipulation, Tranquility will receive

25 allowed claims totaling ten million dollars, nine million
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WASHINGTON MUTUAL, INC., et al.

1 dollars of which will be allowed in Class 12 as a general

2 unsecured claim and one million dollars of which will be

3 allowed as a Class 18 subordinated claim.

4          The substantial reduction in the amount of

5 Tranquility's claim inures to the benefit of creditors,

6 particularly at the lower end of the debtors' capital structure

7 and in particular the PIERS class.  Tranquility agreed upon the

8 effective date, unconditionally, fully, finally and forever to

9 waive and release the debtors, the Chapter 11 estates, the

10 reorganized debtors and the respective past or present parent

11 entities, directors and officers from any and all claims,

12 demands, rights, liabilities or causes of action.

13          Mr. Goulding would further testify that Tranquility

14 also agreed in the settlement to support confirmation of the

15 seventh amended plan.  The settlement significantly reduces the

16 Tranquility claim and removes the risks to the debtors' estates

17 of a much larger claim, should Tranquility prevail on the

18 merits.  The parties also continue to dispute the applicability

19 of Section 510(b) of the Bankruptcy Code to Tranquility's claim

20 and that issue is one that would have to be litigated to

21 conclusion, posing additional risk for each side.

22          The settlement will save the estate significant costs

23 of litigating the Tranquility claim to conclusion.  The

24 Tranquility claim is highly complex and the litigation would

25 require extensive analysis of residential real property
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WASHINGTON MUTUAL, INC., et al.

1 appraisal and mortgage securitization practices at WMI's former

2 subsidiaries, as well as investigation of Tranquility's own

3 knowledge of the relevant facts and circumstances.

4          Absent the settlement stipulation, the parties would

5 have to commence discovery.  That discovery would likely be

6 long, difficult and expensive because it would require

7 significant third-party discovery of numerous appraisal firms,

8 as well as former Washington Mutual employees, officers and

9 directors.  That discovery would also require detailed

10 examination of potentially tens or even hundreds of thousands

11 of mortgage appraisals underlying the mortgages in the

12 mortgage-backed security issues at stake in the matter.

13          That concludes the proffer, Your Honor.

14          THE COURT:  Does anybody wish to cross-examine Mr.

15 Goulding?

16          MS. KASWAN:  Your Honor, I would like to do so.

17          THE COURT:  All right.

18          MS. KASWAN:  Beth Kaswan of Scott & Scott.

19          THE COURT:  You should take the stand and be sworn

20 before cross.

21      (Witness Sworn)

22          THE CLERK:  Please state your full name for the

23 record.

24          THE WITNESS:  Jonathan Goulding, G-O-U-L-D-I-N-G.

25          THE COURT:  All right.  Before we commence cross, can
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WASHINGTON MUTUAL, INC., et al.

1 you confirm that what counsel stated was your direct would be

2 what you would testify if you were called.

3          THE WITNESS:  Yes.

4          THE COURT:  All right.  You may cross.

5 CROSS-EXAMINATION

6 BY MS. KASWAN:

7 Q.   Did you do any factual review at all of the Tranquility

8 claim?  In other words, did you review any depositions, any

9 documents that were subpoenaed, any documents that were

10 produced informally by WCC, WMAAC, or Chase?

11 A.   Not much, no.

12 Q.   Did you do any?

13 A.   In connection with the Tranquility claim, I looked at a

14 number of documents a long time ago but I haven't looked at

15 them recently.

16 Q.   So your factual review played no part at all in terms of

17 this settlement, is that right?

18 A.   In terms of the overall settlement, I'm looking at sort of

19 the merits of the case, that information would be privileged as

20 mostly relying on counsel but in terms of looking at the

21 settlement as a whole and what that number represents in terms

22 of why settling it, we're looking at the forty-nine million

23 dollar claim, the reserve that would be set aside for some

24 period while that claim would be litigated and the cost of that

25 litigation in comparison with what the settlement looks like.
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WASHINGTON MUTUAL, INC., et al.

1 Q.   So, this claim, you've got nine million that was treated

2 as a general unsecured claim.  And does that relate to

3 California Securities Law claims that Tranquility raised?

4 A.   It settled all of the claims that Tranquility filed.

5 Q.   And in -- well, the nine million that was proposed to be a

6 general unsecured claim --

7 A.   Right.

8 Q.   -- in your stipulation, you stated that or the parties

9 stated that that was to be non-subordinated and that that nine

10 million was related only to the California Securities Law's

11 claims; isn't that right?

12 A.   I don't know.  I would have to look at the stipulation

13 again, I guess.

14 Q.   Well, what was the basis from a legal basis in your view,

15 for treating nine million dollars as unsecured and one million

16 relating to Section 11 and Section 15 claims under Federal Law

17 as subordinate?

18 A.   I'm not an attorney, and so I can't give you that answer

19 without reviewing privileged information.

20 Q.   So, as far as -- you can't tell us how that came to be?

21 A.   I can only tell you sort of where the numbers ended up and

22 how we derived them but I can't tell you the legal basis for

23 that, no.

24 Q.   All right.  And in the proposed stipulation in paragraph

25 9, there appears the following statements:
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WASHINGTON MUTUAL, INC., et al.

1      "On the effective date, the supplemental objection shall

2 be deemed withdrawn and the motion to alter or amend shall be

3 deemed adjourned, provided however such withdrawal or

4 adjournment shall be without prejudice to the debtors and the

5 creditors committees' right to object on any ground to any

6 other claims filed against the debtors' Chapter 11 estate."

7      Was that paragraph intended to apply to the MBS class

8 claims?

9 A.   Do you mean when drafting the stipulation?

10 Q.   Well, were you present when that was negotiated with

11 Tranquility?

12 A.   I was present for the economic understanding and discussed

13 the economic understanding but I wasn't the part of the

14 drafting.

15 Q.   And so, sir, when the -- so do you know whether or not

16 that is a -- that was a negotiated part of the settlement?

17 A.   I don't know.  I wasn't involved in that piece.

18 Q.   And in the proposed order that was submitted to the Court,

19 there appears the following statement:

20      "Ordered that because the motion to alter, amend is still

21 pending, and the portion of the December order related to

22 subordination under Section 510(b) of the Bankruptcy Code is

23 not a final order, the withdrawal of the supplemental objection

24 and adjournment of the motion to alter or amend, shall be

25 without prejudice to the debtors and the creditors committees'
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1 right to object on any ground to any other claims filed against

2 debtors' Chapter 11 estate."

3      And was that, sir, intended to address the MBS class

4 claims against the debtors?

5 A.   Again, it says what it says.  I didn't draft it.  I'm not

6 a lawyer.  I wasn't involved in that piece of it.  I'm just

7 looking at the economics of the settlement.

8 Q.   Well, were the economics of the settlement directed at

9 settling with an individual MVS purchaser on terms that would

10 undercut the much higher class claims?  Was that the basis of

11 the negotiations of this settlement?

12 A.   Again, the conversations other than the economics would

13 have been on the side with counsel, so I wouldn't want to

14 reveal privileged information.

15 Q.   So was that subject discussed in the presence of

16 Tranquility negotiators?

17 A.   I wasn't a part of any of that discussion.

18 Q.   Were you in the negotiations with the Tranquility

19 negotiators?

20 A.   Most of the discussion was between lawyers and then the

21 lawyers would come back to the debtors and its professionals

22 for a conversation about the economics.

23 Q.   And sir, in terms of evaluating the amount of the losses

24 of Tranquility, did you or anybody else associated with the

25 debtor hire an economist to determine what Tranquility's losses
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1 were?

2 A.   We did not hire an economist.

3 Q.   And, sir, was there any calculation that you saw

4 determining -- to determine the presumed losses for the

5 Tranquility purchases?

6 A.   We looked at the information that was filed in their proof

7 of claim.  We looked at some of the other information, but I

8 don't know if there's a large analysis that was prepared.

9 Q.   Well, sir, as there any schedule or analysis that went

10 offering-by-offering or tranche by tranche to calculate what

11 Tranquility's losses were?

12          MR. STROCHAK:  Objection, Your Honor.  Can I have a

13 proffer as to how this relates to the limited objection to the

14 language in the order relating to the effect of the withdrawal?

15 That's the only basis for Mr. --

16          THE COURT:  Objection was filed.  Let me hear --

17          MS. KASWAN:  Yes, Your Honor.  It's our position that

18 both paragraph 9 of the stipulation and this order demonstrate

19 that this settlement was entered into solely for the purpose of

20 undercutting the larger class claim and in that regard, we

21 believe that provision of the order should be stricken and, in

22 fact, this settlement has no basis, there's been no evaluation

23 of the facts, or --

24          THE COURT:  Well, save the argument.  How does this

25 issue relate to that, the question of did he see any
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1 calculation?

2          MS. KASWAN:  That the provision in the order was the

3 only factor for purposes of this settlement and it should be

4 removed, that this was a collusive settlement.

5          THE COURT:  Well, I don't know that your question goes

6 to that.

7          MS. KASWAN:  Okay.

8          THE COURT:  So, move on.

9          MS. KASWAN:  Well, Your Honor, I have nothing further.

10 The argument that I would have is that in fact this

11 settlement --

12          THE COURT:  All right.

13          MS. KASWAN:  -- should not include that provision.

14          THE COURT:  I understand.  Any redirect?

15          MR. STROCHAK:  No, Your Honor.  Thank you.

16          THE COURT:  All right.  Mr. Goulding, you may step

17 down.

18          THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

19          THE COURT:  Well, I will hear argument now.  I mean,

20 should I hear the objection first?

21          MR. STROCHAK:  That's fine, Your Honor.  Thank you.

22          THE COURT:  Ms. Kaswan?

23          MS. KASWAN:  Your Honor, Tranquility is a single MBS

24 purchaser for the same -- certain of the same offerings that

25 the MBS class purchasers have filed their claim.  The
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1 Tranquility decision that this court issued classifying the

2 Tranquility claim in Class 12, was one of the main reasons that

3 the MBS class filed a proof of claim for Class 12.  And that

4 what this settlement appears to be directed at, particularly

5 with respect to the provision in the order that we've just

6 read, is to nullify this court's earlier decision in the

7 declaration of rule of law for purposes of the class claim and

8 that is an improper purpose for approval of a settlement and

9 for negotiation of the settlement.  And we would ask the Court

10 to preserve the MBS plaintiffs' position with respect to this

11 Court's earlier orders and that that provision in the order is

12 simply gratuitous and I said, directed at the class claims, not

13 settlement of the Tranquility individual claim and we would ask

14 that that be stricken.

15          THE COURT:  All right.

16          MR. STROCHAK:  Thank you.  Your Honor, just generally

17 on the standard, the 9019 standards, we think the settlement is

18 well within the range of reasonableness and therefore -- and in

19 the best interests of the estate and therefore should be

20 approved based on the record of the matter that the Court is

21 quite familiar with.

22          On the language in the stipulation and the order, let

23 me just take a step back and set the table.  The MBS

24 plaintiffs, of course, had a claim early in this case.  They

25 agreed to withdraw that claim pursuant to a stipulation entered
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1 by the Court.  The concept of the stipulation was there was no

2 point in litigating a complex securities litigation if the

3 claim would receive no recovery in the case.  And our view of

4 that stipulation, I don't expect the MBS plaintiffs agree with

5 it, but our view of that stipulation is that the clear

6 implication is and was that only in the event that there would

7 be a recovery for subordinated creditors, would that claim be

8 refiled.

9          And obviously what happened, Your Honor, is the Court

10 ruled on the Tranquility matter.  The MBS plaintiffs saw an

11 opportunity to assert a Class 12 claim and they've done so.

12 We're going to have a litigation over all aspects of that claim

13 going forward.  That, of course, is not a matter for today.

14          What is important for today is that on the timely

15 filed and as yet undecided motion for reconsideration of the

16 subordination decision on the Tranquility claim, the MBS

17 plaintiffs intervened in that motion.  They filed papers in

18 support of Tranquility's position, arguing that the judgment

19 should not be -- the order should not be reconsidered and was

20 correct and that, of course, was pending at the time that we

21 reached agreement to settle with Tranquility.

22          And what we've provided mechanically for how we take

23 care of the pending matters in this case is that obviously

24 we're agreeing to reduce the Tranquility claim to the amounts

25 as set forward in the stipulation and they will be allowed in
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1 those amounts.  So, we are resolving our objections to

2 Tranquility's claims.  At the same time, the motion to amend

3 remains pending and is simply being adjourned without date at

4 this point.

5          The MBS plaintiffs have intervened in it and that --

6 those issues will have to get decided at some point in

7 connection with their claim, if the Court concludes that

8 they're not foreclosed under the prior stipulation withdrawing

9 their claim from asserting anything other than a subordinated

10 claim in the first place.

11          So that issue remains out there and what we've done is

12 structured the stipulation and the order to leave that out

13 there without prejudice to anyone's rights.  What we don't want

14 to happen and what we don't think would be appropriate is for

15 anyone to come back and say look, by virtue of the settlement,

16 somehow the debtors have waived any rights to contest other

17 claims, the MBS claims or any other claims that might be

18 asserted in this matter and that's what the language in the

19 order is intended to do.

20          It is not, and does not, foreclose the MBS plaintiffs

21 from making whatever argument they want regarding law of the

22 case.  If they want to come in and argue to Your Honor that

23 your decision on subordination is equally applicable to them

24 and is law of the case, the stipulation and the order here do

25 not foreclose them from making that argument.  It likewise does
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1 not foreclose us from opposing that argument.  So it

2 essentially preserves the status quo as it existed before the

3 settlement stipulation without prejudice to their rights and

4 without prejudicing our rights to object on any basis to the

5 claims that they have asserted.

6          They are arguing, Your Honor, that somehow what we are

7 doing is equivalent to vacatur of the decision on

8 subordination; it is not.  I know what vacatur looks like.

9 This is not the way you get it and we, you know, obviously made

10 a decision not to ask for that relief in this matter.  So we

11 are not asking for vacatur of the Court's earlier decision on

12 subordination.  By the same token, we don't think that by

13 resolving a matter with one claimant, we somehow should be

14 foreclosed from making our arguments with respect to another

15 claimant's proof of claim.

16          I want to note that there's been quite a bit of

17 confusion based on all sorts of statements from the MBS

18 plaintiffs as to the status of Tranquility's claim.

19 Tranquility's claims are not the same ones that are asserted by

20 the MBS plaintiffs.  They are different tranches, perhaps

21 different tranches in the same issues of securities but

22 different tranches.  My understanding and our diligence is not

23 complete on this and that's one of the reasons why we asked for

24 adjournment of the matters that the MBS plaintiffs had sought

25 to have heard today, is -- our understanding is that
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1 Tranquility was not a member of the class that the MBS

2 plaintiffs seek to certify.  The Tranquility holdings were in

3 deeper subordinated tranches of those -- excuse me -- yes, I

4 believe the Tranquility purchases were in deeper subordinated

5 tranches of those securities and my understanding, again our

6 diligence is not complete, but my understanding is that the MBS

7 plaintiffs are in more senior tranches of those securities,

8 many of which continue to pay principal and interest without

9 any default.

10          So those are issues that will all have to get explored

11 later but the purpose of this and the language in the

12 stipulation which we think is neutral as to everybody is to

13 simply preserve rights to object on whatever basis and does not

14 prejudice the MBS plaintiffs from coming back and arguing that

15 your decision is law of the case and notwithstanding the

16 pending motion to amend, they can somehow foreclose us from

17 litigating.  If they want to make that argument later, they can

18 make it but they can't make it because of the settlement that

19 we're entering into.

20          I hope that's clear.  If Your Honor has any questions,

21 I'm happy to address them.

22          THE COURT:  All right.  Thank you.

23          MS. KASWAN:  Your Honor, if I could please --

24          THE COURT:  You may reply.

25          MS. KASWAN:  Yes.  With respect to the motion to alter
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1 or amend, that was returnable February 1 and we were prepared

2 to argue our position with respect to that motion on that date.

3 To the extent that the debtor has decided to settle this claim,

4 there's no basis for continuing that motion.  They withdrew

5 that motion on February 1 in order to settle this claim and it

6 should be treated as withdrawn.

7          With respect to the difference between our claims and

8 Tranquility's claims, all of the claims alleged by the MBS

9 plaintiff class and also by Tranquility involve

10 misrepresentations made in offerings for purchases of the

11 securities.  The same offering documents are involved in both

12 sets of cases.  When the debtor and the unsecured creditors

13 objected to Tranquility's claims on subordination or attempted

14 to subordinate Tranquility's claims, there was no distinction

15 made between any tranche, any offering, or whether the claim

16 was under the California law or -- and the federal law.  The

17 California law tracks the federal law, almost word for word.

18 If you look at Tranquility's counts with respect to the

19 California Securities Law and compare it to the Federal

20 Securities Law, they are almost identical in terms of the same

21 misrepresentations.

22          So the argument that there is any difference

23 whatsoever between these two cases is completely a facade.  And

24 to the extent that the debtor and the unsecured creditors could

25 settle a fifty million dollar -- a seventy-one million dollar
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1 purchase with a claimed fifty million dollar loss without even

2 bothering to look at the losses and then say but for purposes

3 of the MBS claim, that's not ripe for review by this court, is

4 just disingenuous.

5          And I have nothing further, Your Honor, other than to

6 say that there is no point in adjourning a motion for a case

7 that is settled.  To the extent the request is to adjourn the

8 motion --

9          THE COURT:  Well, but --

10          MS. KASWAN:  -- it's definite --

11          THE COURT:  -- didn't you intervene in it?

12          MS. KASWAN:  We did, Your Honor and --

13          THE COURT:  So it's not settled as to you.

14          MS. KASWAN:  Well, that's -- well, the settlement

15 would settle it, the entirety of the claim or I --

16          THE COURT:  It would settle the Tranquility claim but

17 not -- you've intervened as a party in the motion to alter the

18 decision.

19          MS. KASWAN:  Well, that's correct, Your Honor, but the

20 decision would still be law -- our argument for the motion --

21          THE COURT:  But they're --

22          MS. KASWAN:  -- was law of the case.

23          THE COURT:  Well, they're suggesting you can still

24 make that argument and I still have to decide that issue.  How

25 does the settlement affect that?
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1          MS. KASWAN:  Well, Your Honor, it would be our view

2 that this court did rule, right, and to the extent that this

3 settlement is purely directed at not resolving this issue in

4 the context of the plan approval, that -- and deferring it

5 until after the plan, that what has happened is that had the

6 Court resolved the motion when it was made, we would have been

7 in a position to ask to vote under -- in Class 18.

8          But what has happened by withdrawing the motion to

9 alter or amend, which was to be heard February 1 and then

10 settling and then putting that provision in the settlement,

11 what they have effectively done is ripsaw us with respect to

12 the -- knowing whether or not we were on 12 or 18 for voting on

13 the plan.  And so we have been prejudiced by this.

14          THE COURT:  Well, for purposes of voting on the plan,

15 you asked to be in 12 and --

16          MS. KASWAN:  Well --

17          THE COURT:  -- that was allowed.

18          MS. KASWAN:  -- however, Your Honor, we wouldn't have

19 had the Court determined that the Tranquility decision was not

20 going to stand.  We filed our proof of claim and the request to

21 be in Class 12 based upon the Tranquility decision.  Thank you,

22 Your Honor.

23          MR. JOHNSON:  Good morning, Your Honor.  Robert

24 Johnson from Aiken Gump on behalf of the creditors committee.

25 We rise briefly to support the debtors in their motion to
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1 approve the Tranquility settlement.  We believe it satisfies

2 the Martin factors as the debtors have explained.

3          We also believe that the third decretal paragraph of

4 the order is perfectly appropriate.  As Your Honor knows, we

5 did make a motion to alter or amend and if I could correct the

6 record, the MBS plaintiffs did not intervene as a party in the

7 Tranquility action.  They merely filed their own opposition to

8 our motion to alter or amend and then the debtors determined to

9 settle this before that motion was heard.

10          Your Honor, if it would be acceptable to the parties,

11 I could suggest still more language we could add to that

12 decretal paragraph and just add that it's without prejudice to

13 any other claimant to make any argument before this court.  We

14 believe this paragraph of the order merely provides that the

15 situation is what it was after we had made the motion to alter

16 or amend and before it was heard, before it was determined;

17 everyone without prejudice to make whatever arguments they seek

18 to make.  Thank you.

19          THE COURT:  Okay.  Well, I am going to rule.  I think

20 that obviously the Martin standards supporting a settlement

21 have been met here and I think there's no contest as to that.

22 Despite the MBS plaintiffs' assertion that the paragraph in the

23 order somehow adversely affects their rights, I do not think it

24 does.  It simply preserves what was the status quo as of

25 February 1 and that was the issue of whether or not my decision
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1 should be altered or not.  It does not purport to change what

2 or affect any arguments that the MBS plaintiffs may have

3 regarding the applicability of my decision to their claims, nor

4 does it affect the arguments of the committee and debtor that

5 my decision was incorrect.  I think it leaves the status quo.

6          The debtor did not withdraw or the committee did not

7 withdraw their motion.  It was continued.  So I think

8 everybody's rights, except Tranquility who has now settled, are

9 preserved and I'll enter the order as suggested.

10          MR. STROCHAK:  Thank you, Your Honor.  May I approach?

11          THE COURT:  You may.  Thank you.  Do you want to take

12 a break now?

13          MR. STROCHAK:  Yes, Your Honor.

14          THE COURT:  What time do you think we should come

15 back?

16          MR. STROCHAK:  Before the hearing, the estimate was

17 about 10:30.  I have been obviously out of touch for the last

18 half hour, so maybe I could check and we could just notify

19 chambers.  I think about 10:30 but if it's going to be

20 different, I could just call chambers briefly.

21          THE COURT:  All right.  Let's take a recess until

22 10:30 unless you're ready earlier.

23          MR. STROCHAK:  Thank you, Your Honor.

24      (Recess from 10:01 a.m. until 1:47 p.m.)

25          THE CLERK:  All rise.  You may be seated.
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1          THE COURT:  Good afternoon.

2          MR. ROSEN:  Good afternoon, Your Honor.  Brian Rosen,

3 Weil Gotshal & Manges on behalf of the debtors, Washington

4 Mutual, Inc.  With me is my partner, Mr. John Mastando and as

5 you can see, we have many other people here, as well.

6          Your Honor, first I would like to apologize and thank

7 the Court for your patience in allowing us to move from 9:30 to

8 this morning to this afternoon and it's for a very good cause.

9 Your Honor, as you know, the debtors, along with many of the

10 parties, were asked to go to mediation or told to go to

11 mediation, actually, as a result of your September opinion.

12 And by the time we got to December 12, Your Honor, we filed a

13 plan that had the agreement of the debtors, the equity

14 committee, the creditors committee and major -- AAOC and major

15 creditor parties, as well.

16          At that time, however, Your Honor, we still had not

17 had on board another party to the mediation, which was the TPS

18 consortium, and the TPS Group.  They had participated briefly

19 in that mediation process but we moved forward without them at

20 that time.

21          And as the Court is well aware, we've had a flurry of

22 litigation in connection with those parties, subsequent to the

23 filing, specifically in connection with the disclosure

24 statement, the motion for reclassification and there was also

25 some pleading practice in front of the district court, as well
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1 as the Third Circuit Court of Appeals.

2          As a result of the efforts, Your Honor, of the

3 mediator, we've been successful in bringing back into the fold,

4 the TPS consortium and the TPS group.  And as a result of all

5 of those efforts, we've been able to reach an agreement with

6 those parties on the terms of a modification to the plan which

7 we filed this morning.

8          And additionally, Your Honor, we have been working on

9 a stipulation with those parties and signed by not only the

10 debtors but the creditors committee, the equity committee,

11 JPMorgan Chase and the TPS entities, that will set forth a

12 global understanding with respect to not only the terms of the

13 Chapter 11 plan, as well as the litigation which is currently

14 pending before District Judge Sleet.

15          Your Honor, that stipulation, while the parties have

16 executed it, still awaits one other authorization that Mr.

17 Stark is waiting for and Mr. Stark will leave at a certain

18 point here, Your Honor, so that he can have that communication

19 with his clients or a member of the group, so that we can get

20 the authorization to release the stipulation with the Court's

21 permission.

22          MR. STARK:  With the Court's permission, I might need

23 to go in and out of the courtroom.

24          THE COURT:  That's fine.

25          MR. ROSEN:  But, Your Honor, if I could, what I would
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1 like to do is just inform the Court at this time what it is

2 that we've agreed to because of how it impacts what we're going

3 to be doing today.

4          THE COURT:  Okay.

5          MR. ROSEN:  First, Your Honor, and similar as we did

6 with some other parties with stipulations that were filed

7 before the Court over the weekend, the TPS funds as we call

8 them, adding the two together, will take their previously no

9 votes in Class 19 and have those votes be considered nunc pro

10 tunc to their date of filing in acceptances of the plan.

11 Likewise, they will be considered to have granted the releases

12 pursuant to Section 41.6 of the plan.

13          To the extent that there is a party in that group that

14 has not executed the ballot within three business days of the

15 Court's approval of the stipulation, they will tender that

16 executed ballot and release.

17          Likewise, Your Honor, they will agree to support the

18 confirmation of the plan, not oppose the partial vacatur as

19 requested by the debtors and they will certainly take steps to

20 make sure that the outstanding litigation in front of Judge

21 Sleet and any other litigation is stopped and forever dismissed

22 with prejudice.

23          In consideration for that, Your Honor, the TPS funds

24 will be given an allowed general unsecured claim in the amount

25 of 618,000 dollars and change.  Likewise, Your Honor, JPMorgan
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1 will provide consideration to the TPS funds in the aggregate in

2 the amount of eighteen million dollars, which is a share, Your

3 Honor, of the amounts that were previously provided to REIT

4 series holders pursuant to the sixth amended plan.

5          Additionally, the TPS funds will have the opportunity

6 under Section 41.18 of the plan to file an application for

7 reimbursement of their expenses and have the Court consider

8 those.  In the event that they are less than fifteen million --

9 equal to or less than fifteen million dollars, none of the

10 debtors, the equity committee or the creditors committee, will

11 oppose the application but the payment, Your Honor, of whatever

12 you award, would be as follows:

13          Up to three million dollars would be permitted to be

14 paid by the debtors in cash and the balance up to twelve

15 million dollars, would be considered a Class 18 claim under the

16 18.

17          The TPS funds and the members will receive their

18 distributions then, Your Honor, pursuant to the plan itself,

19 Article 23.1 -- excuse me, Section 23.1 of the plan.

20          As part of this, Your Honor, and I don't know if the

21 Court had the opportunity to read the modification that we

22 filed earlier today, but there was an agreement that the

23 allocation between the preferred and the common would be

24 seventy-five percent in favor of the preferred, twenty-five

25 percent in favor of the common.
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1          Additionally, Your Honor, there were certain

2 governance provisions that were agreed to with respect to

3 population of the trust advisory board and making sure that the

4 TPS funds had a seat there -- similarly a seat on the

5 litigation subcommittee which is a part of the trust.  Also,

6 there would be one member of the reorganized debtor board that

7 the TPS folks would have a seat.

8          There would be, Your Honor, releases that are handed

9 back and forth among the respective parties and I would say,

10 Your Honor, that those are the salient provisions of the

11 agreement among the parties.

12          As I said, Your Honor, we are awaiting for

13 authorization to file that under certification of counsel and

14 we expect to do so in the very, very immediate future.  But

15 because we don't want to delay any further, Your Honor, going

16 forward with the confirmation hearing and this -- obviously the

17 changing of the ballots impacts the testimony of Mr. Sharp, so

18 we want to have that on file, Your Honor.

19          What we'd like to do at this point in time is go

20 forward with the other witnesses and we can start, Your Honor,

21 with Mr. Jonathan Goulding and with that, Your Honor, I would

22 hand the podium over to my partner, Mr. Mastando.

23          THE COURT:  All right.  Mr. Stark?

24          MR. STARK:  Your Honor, may I just briefly address --

25 this is Robert Stark from Brown Rudnick on behalf of the TPS
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1 Consortium.  Mr. Rosen did accurately reflect on the record the

2 accommodation that's been reached and I think the plan, besides

3 pro se objectors, is going to be largely consensual.

4          We still do have one issue of authorization, as Mr.

5 Rosen alluded to and I may need to go back out in the hallway

6 to obtain that or to report that I don't have it.  I think in

7 all likelihood we will have it.

8          In the odd chance that we don't have it, if we're

9 moving forward with an evidentiary presentation at this moment

10 in time, I don't want to talk about for want of a nail, Rome

11 burning down, but if in fact find ourselves in a situation

12 where the evidentiary presentation is closed and I don't yet

13 have authorization or we may need to return witnesses to the

14 stand so as to keep the evidentiary record open because for

15 whatever reason, I may need to go ahead and press my objections

16 forward, I would ask at this point that whatever procedure we

17 have going forward enables me until it's not necessary.

18          THE COURT:  How long before you get word from the

19 one --

20          MR. STARK:  Hours ago, Your Honor.  I don't know.  I'm

21 trying my hardest, I really am.

22          THE COURT:  All right.  Well, let's see how it goes

23 before I get to closing the record.

24          MR. STARK:  Thank you.

25          MR. ROSEN:  Your Honor, I just want to explain the
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1 impact also of the vote change.  Your Honor, there really was

2 only one class that voted not.  It was Class 19 and as the

3 Court is well aware, it was a barely vote no because even with

4 the TPS votes, 62.16 percent in amount voted in favor in the

5 preferred stock class.

6          With this, Your Honor, I believe the amount goes up in

7 excess of eighty-five percent and so, there would be no classes

8 voting no to the plan, other than a single vote in Class 9,

9 which is irrelevant because of the way the plan works.

10          THE COURT:  Okay.

11          MR. MASTANDO:  Good afternoon, Your Honor.  John

12 Mastando from Weil Gotshal on behalf of the debtors.  Your

13 Honor, the debtors filed the declaration of Jonathan Goulding

14 in support of confirmation on Monday.  I have the original here

15 in the courtroom, if Your Honor would like.

16          We would offer the declaration into evidence, along

17 with the exhibits attached thereto and Mr. Goulding is in the

18 courtroom for cross-examination if anyone wants that

19 opportunity.  Otherwise, we would ask Your Honor to admit the

20 declaration and exhibits into evidence.

21          THE COURT:  All right.  Thank you.

22 (Jonathan Goulding declaration offered into evidence as

23 Debtor's Exhibit as of today's date.)

24          MR. ROQUEMORE:  Anybody wish to cross-examination Mr.

25 Goulding?  I see a couple of people rising, so let's have him
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1 first take the stand so he can be sworn.  Actually, you're

2 still under oath from this morning, so can you state that your

3 declaration is accurate and would be your direct testimony if

4 you had been called to testify?

5          THE WITNESS:  I can.

6          THE COURT:  All right.  Who wishes to --

7          MR. ROSEN:  Your Honor, Mr. Sherwood would have asked

8 questions about the reserve that is going to be established in

9 connection with the claim that has been asserted by the MBS

10 plaintiffs.

11          THE COURT:  Yes.

12          MR. ROSEN:  We spoke the other day about that.

13 Initially, Your Honor, we are going to reserve as if that claim

14 were to be allowed in the amount of 435 million, just as in the

15 amount it was filed.  We will then subsequently deal with that

16 claim, Your Honor, by way of objection or estimation but for

17 purposes of confirmation and initial distributions, there set

18 at 435 while in Class 12.

19          MR. MASTANDO:  In Class 12?

20          MR. ROSEN:  Yes.

21          THE COURT:  In Class 12.  Okay.  All right.  Then no

22 questions from MBS.  Anybody else?

23          MR. MATACHE:  Good afternoon, Your Honor.  My name is

24 Florin Matache and I am pro se litigant.

25          THE COURT:  Can you spell your last name for the
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1 record?

2          MR. MATACHE:  Sure, it's M-A-T-A-C-H-E.

3          THE COURT:  Thank you.

4          MR. MATACHE:  I am here mostly to talk about the PIERS

5 class, Class 16, although I do hold the PIERS stock as well.

6 CROSS-EXAMINATION

7 BY MR. MATACHE:

8 Q.   And my first question for -- so, first of all, good

9 afternoon, Mr. Goulding.

10 A.   Good afternoon.

11 Q.   My first question is, regarding the liquidation analysis,

12 under this plan and previous plans, as well, you are involved,

13 you are knowledgeable in regards to the incubation analysis.

14 A.   Yes.

15 Q.   Okay.  So, initially when the plan was filed back in

16 December, the recovery for the PIERS class was about seventy-

17 four million dollars; is that your recollection?

18 A.   I'm sorry, I didn't hear the number that you said.

19 Q.   Seventy-four million.

20 A.   Seventy-four million.

21 Q.   Yeah.

22 A.   That's right.

23 Q.   And then it was adjusted later on to about ninety-four?

24 A.   That's right.

25 Q.   That happened because of additional funds coming into the
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1 estate from the American Savings litigation?

2 A.   It's a principal, as a result of that, that's correct.

3 Q.   Okay.  Now I would like to go back to a filing that was

4 made by the debtors back in October.  It was after the Court

5 issued the September opinion and there was a filing made in

6 draft form of a proposed plan that the debtors wanted to ahead

7 with and I guess leave mediation separate and go with that

8 separate -- let me see if I can find the docket number for

9 that.  It's docket number 8708 and it was filed on October 3,

10 2011.  And it was a liquidation analysis as part of that, that

11 showed an estimated effective date of October 31, 2011.

12 A.   That's right.

13 Q.   So you are -- you recall that?

14 A.   I do.

15 Q.   Okay.  Would you like copies of it or I can just read you

16 the numbers?

17 A.   You can give me copies if you're going to ask me what the

18 specific numbers are.

19 Q.   All right, just a second.

20 A.   Or we can try it without to start.

21 Q.   Well, I will just read from my objection then because I

22 have the numbers here and my objection to the plan for the

23 record is -- should be docket number 9589.  All right.

24      So going back to the draft proposal and the recovery

25 analysis and the waterfall matrix that was filed on October 3,
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1 2011, it showed estimated recovery for Class 16 of 271 million

2 dollars and this was after the contractual subordination; is

3 that your recollection pretty much?

4 A.   I don't remember a specific number off the top of my head

5 but I remember that it was substantially larger in the October

6 draft.

7 Q.   All right.  That's fine.  Also, in that recovery analysis,

8 did the reorganized common stock of the debtors go to -- were

9 supposed to go anyone but creditors.  It was going to

10 creditors; is that your --

11 A.   There was no distribution under that draft to anybody

12 below the PIERS, that's correct.

13 Q.   All right.  So, my following question is, so if we're

14 looking at October 31 for recovery of 271 million, and then --

15 so the effective date would have been October 31 and that would

16 be a recovery of 271 million for Class 16 and in the new plan

17 with an effective date of February 28, and this is before the

18 additional parts that I mentioned earlier from American

19 Savings, we're using the seventy-four million dollar recovery

20 for Class 16 that was filed initially with the plan, there's a

21 difference then of about 100 million dollars lost to the Class

22 16, to the PIERS.

23 A.   Yes, again I don't remember the 271 specifically, but

24 there's a substantial decline and if your question is what's

25 the decline relate to --
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1 Q.   It is.  I mean because if it's 200 million in four months,

2 that would make today to a burn rate of fifty million dollar a

3 month, so that's exactly what my question would be, yes, is

4 that because of the burn rate or --

5 A.   Yeah, the -- most of that is the thirty million a month

6 that accrues, the post-petition interest that is senior to the

7 PIERS --

8 Q.   Right.

9 A.   -- which also, you know, includes some professional fees,

10 as well, for their ongoing administration of the case.  I would

11 have to look through all of the rest of the pieces, sort of

12 putting them next to each other to know exactly what the other

13 changes are in terms of the total proceeds.  There may have

14 been a few other pieces that moved around in terms of what was

15 considered in the total assets for distribution.

16 Q.   So, then your answer is the burn rate did not account for

17 the fifty million dollars a month.

18 A.   It accounts for thirty million a month, so for four

19 months -- obviously you're talking about 120 of the just under

20 200 million, if those numbers are correct, there's probably a

21 couple of other components to the change that would be in the

22 total proceeds numbers.  So, we're looking at the top of the

23 two liquidation analyses, if I put them next to each other, I

24 might be able to figure out what other changes have occurred

25 but I don't have a recollection off the top of my head.
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1 Q.   Are you saying that the debtors changed their

2 interpretation of subordination in any way?

3 A.   Well, there's no changes associated with subordination.

4 The only possible changes would be as the case has moved on,

5 estimates for recovery of taxes or value in the other

6 subsidiaries have moved.  So what's requested in the most

7 recent liquidation analysis is our best estimate of what the

8 total proceeds from the estate will be.  And I guess without

9 having the information in front of me, it's hard for me to know

10 which of the numbers changed to give rise to the overall

11 change.

12 Q.   Did any money come into the estate when the plan was filed

13 in December, so were before the American Savings additional

14 funds?

15 A.   Were there changes?

16 Q.   No, did any funds come into the estate from additional

17 funds?

18 A.   Well, funds come into the estate, you know, over time

19 whether it's interest payments that we receive, distributions

20 from the initial dividend.  There are inflows to the estate.

21 They are also outflows associated with payments to

22 professionals, payments of vendors, payment of rent.  So, the

23 numbers from one draft to the next draft will change, depending

24 on what a lot of that activity is and then what our future

25 estimates are of those assets as we see them on the effective
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1 date.

2 Q.   But nothing substantial like the American Savings,

3 additional funds that came in?

4 A.   That's the only one that I am aware of that's of that

5 magnitude.

6 Q.   Okay.

7 A.   Just that.

8 Q.   All right.  So, then perhaps what I am looking for is an

9 explanation of what change in the recovery analysis, waterfall

10 matrix, from the one that was filed back in October last year

11 and the one that was filed in December, as per the new plan,

12 what changes took place that now the reorganized common stock

13 goes -- does not go to creditors anymore.

14 A.   So, as part of the mediation, the overall deal that was

15 reached, part of that overall settlement is that the stock will

16 go to the preferred and common holders.

17 Q.   Okay.  So, you've -- I mean the debtors just not -- did

18 not just decide it belongs there.  It was done as part of the

19 deal.

20 A.   That's right.

21 Q.   Okay.  Well, okay, so then I am going to read you

22 something that was stated at a hearing, again back in October;

23 it was a mediation hearing on October 6, 2011.  This was after

24 the September opinion when again, the debtors wanted to proceed

25 with a plan and leave mediation separate and there were
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1 arguments of course from the equity committee on why that's not

2 a good idea or why they would rather to go to mediation first.

3      It's on page 8, the official transcript and I can get you

4 a copy if you want.

5 A.   You can just read it, that's okay.

6 Q.   I will read it for you then.  It's a statement, I guess,

7 made by a Mr. Leo Crowley for the Bank of New York-Mellon as

8 indentured trustee for the senior notes.  So, I am not going to

9 quote everything but basically, I'll start at the point that I

10 am -- I want to address the Court.  So, Mr. Crowley says:

11      "The second thing that I heard this morning that alarmed

12 me a little bit is the equity committee, I think, hinted at

13 least that one of the goals they had in mediation and the

14 reason that they wanted to defer plan confirmation pending

15 mediation is because they thought maybe they could negotiate

16 something in the plan that might read down to their benefit.

17 Well, the issue with that, Your Honor, frankly is that the

18 estate assets cannot be used to settle their equity committee

19 claims against the settlement noteholders.  Those are claims

20 against individual creditors and you can't use estate assets to

21 settle them."

22      Do you have any idea what he's talking about in this

23 statement?

24 A.   Do I have any idea what he's talking about?  I mean, I

25 guess I understand what he said.
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1 Q.   Okay.  But are you aware of the acted rule, that he's

2 talking about that he cannot settle --

3          THE COURT:  Well, I think this is going to argument.

4 This is not a fact.  This is a legal argument, I would suggest.

5          MR. MACHATE:  Well, I am just -- want to know if he's

6 aware of that.

7          THE COURT:  Well, whether he's aware or not, I don't

8 think is really relevant.

9          MR. MACHATE:  It's -- well, I am just trying to

10 establish it for the record that the debtors were aware of that

11 fact.

12          THE COURT:  Well, were you aware that argument was

13 made?

14          THE WITNESS:  I was.

15          THE COURT:  All right.

16          MR. MACHATE:  All right.  Okay.

17 BY MR. MACHATE:

18 Q.   So, a couple of questions more.  Let's see.  Going back to

19 the recovery analysis, waterfall matrixes that we talked about

20 earlier, I am looking and my question is going to be laid out

21 as to the recoveries for the senior classes and I'm -- will

22 compare what was in the October liquidation analysis from there

23 to the one that was filed in December with the new plan and

24 again, comparing effective dates of October 31 with effective

25 dates of February 28 of this year.  Well, before going, I
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1 guess, to the exact numbers, are you aware of if the recovery

2 for the senior notes or the senior subordinated notes is less

3 in the new plan as compared to the -- with an effective date of

4 February 28, compared to the waterfall that was file in draft

5 form with an effective date of October 31, are you aware of the

6 differences in the recoveries?

7 A.   They get a hundred percent under both cases.

8 Q.   No, but I am talking about actual numbers.

9 A.   I'm sorry?

10 Q.   I'm talking about actual dollar amounts.

11 A.   Well, I believe the dollar amount would increase from the

12 October draft to the current drafts by virtue of the continued

13 accrual of post-petition interests you were talking about

14 before.  So, the dollar recovery goes up but the percentage is

15 the same.

16 Q.   Right, so the dollar recovery goes up after -- you know,

17 in the section where it says recovery after contractual

18 subordination.

19 A.   That's right.

20 Q.   So, comparing I guess apples to apples, it goes up for the

21 senior classes --

22 A.   That's right.

23 Q.   -- with -- under the new plan.

24      So is there any other class, besides the PIERS class that

25 is losing recovery when comparing those two?
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1 A.   Again, not having the numbers in front of me, but I would

2 assume that there is some adjustment for the general unsecured

3 claims, where there is a different recovery for them.  Their

4 effectively pari passu with all of those creditors, such that I

5 would think that theirs goes down, as well.  The rest of the

6 ^2:16:28 (indiscernible) that class is obviously a hundred

7 percent recovery, so as their interest runs out, they would get

8 more on account of that additional interest.

9 Q.   Why would the unsecured class adjust down?

10 A.   It just has to do with the amount of proceeds that are

11 available for distribution and not having the numbers in front

12 of me, but I believe the total proceeds available for

13 distribution declined slightly from the October graphs for the

14 current plan and that's largely a result of the cost and

15 expense of an additional four months of the estate prior to the

16 effective date.

17 Q.   But, I mean, I am looking at the -- again, at the

18 liquidation analysis, the waterfall and general unsecured

19 claims, it always listed a reserve of 375 million.  I mean, it

20 never changed under any of the filings.

21 A.   That's right.  You were asking me about who is recovering

22 in light of decline, right?  And so they would get the --

23 Q.   Well, I am asking for class.  I guess not in the --

24 A.   Okay.  I thought your question was does anybody else get

25 less money under this draft or under this plan versus the old
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1 draft, the October draft and not having the numbers in front of

2 me, I'm not a hundred percent sure, but the only other class

3 that could logically have that issue is that the post-petition

4 interest that's paid to Class 12 could be less than it was

5 previously.  I'm not sure because I don't have the numbers in

6 front of me but that's the only other class.

7      By virtue of the proceeds going lower when they get

8 distributed in the first instance before contractual

9 subordination, the recovered amount that the Class 12 creditors

10 could get could be less under the current plan than it was

11 under the October draft.

12 Q.   All right.  So, I guess then you're talking about the --

13 only about the post-petition interest portion?

14 A.   That's right.

15 Q.   Okay.  All right.  That makes it clear then.

16          MR. MACHATE:  I think that's all I have, Your Honor.

17          THE COURT:  Thank you.

18          MR. MACHATE:  Thank you very much.

19          THE COURT:  Anybody else?

20      (No response.)

21          THE COURT:  Thank you.  You may step down.

22          THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

23          MR. ROSEN:  Your Honor, the next witness that we would

24 like to call in support of confirmation of the plan is Mr.

25 Michael Willingham and the equity committee will be tendering
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1 him and his declaration.

2          THE COURT:  All right.  Thank you.

3          MR. SARGENT:  Good afternoon, Your Honor.  Edgar

4 Sargent from Susman Godfrey on behalf of the equity committee.

5 Your Honor, we filed a declaration by Mr. Willingham on Monday

6 and this morning we filed an amended copy and it's not simply a

7 typographical correction, there's a substantive component to

8 it.

9          THE COURT:  I didn't get any of the things filed this

10 morning.  Do you have a copy?

11          MR. SARGENT:  Well, I have a copy for you.  May I

12 approach?

13          THE COURT:  You may.

14          MR. SARGENT:  Would you like a black-lined copy, Your

15 Honor?

16          THE COURT:  Yes, that would be helpful.  Thank you.

17          MR. SARGENT:  If the Court could turn to paragraph 30

18 and 31.

19          THE COURT:  Okay.

20          MR. SARGENT:  These paragraphs discuss the equity

21 committee's consideration in deciding to support this plan of a

22 hypothetical alternative where litigation was pursued and a

23 judgment was obtained and that judgment was obtained on behalf

24 of the debtor and flowed through the waterfall.  There was a

25 calculation done about the deficiency of certain creditors'
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1 claims that would need to be paid before any of that flowed to

2 equity.

3          And in the original version of the declaration, we

4 discussed just the deficiency of the PIERS level which was

5 twenty-six million but actually, that's a little misleading.

6 There are deficiencies at other creditor levels and we wanted

7 to add those in, too to show the complete creditor shortfall

8 that would need to be paid before money flowed to equity, even

9 assuming a recovery as of today.  And that amount, instead of

10 twenty-six million is 206 million, as shown in this version of

11 the declaration and that makes the total amount needed for a

12 recovery that's equivalent to the value equity's getting under

13 the seventh amended plan to 339 million.  That had been 159

14 million and that number is in paragraph 31.  That's the sum and

15 substance of the change.

16          THE COURT:  All right.  Thank you.

17          MR. SARGENT:  With that, we'd like to move admission

18 of -- it's EC-328 into evidence.  Mr. Willingham is here and

19 available for cross-examination.

20          THE COURT:  All right.  Does anybody wish to cross-

21 examine Mr. Willingham?

22      (No response.)

23          THE COURT:  All right.  I will accept his declaration

24 as part of the record.  Thank you.

25          MR. SARGENT:  Thank you very much, Your Honor.
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1          THE COURT:  His amended declaration.

2 (Michael Willingham's amended declaration was received into

3 evidence as Exhibit EC-328, as of today's date.)

4          MR. ROSEN:  Your Honor, we seemed to have made

5 significant progress here with respect to our outstanding

6 issue; if I could ask the Court for just a ten minute recess

7 while we conclude that.

8          THE COURT:  All right.  Do we have any other witnesses

9 you're going to -- other than Mr. Sharp or Klamser.

10          MR. ROSEN:  Mr. Klamser and Mr. Sharp and that's it.

11          THE COURT:  All right.  Let's take a short break then.

12          MR. ROSEN:  Thank you, Your Honor.

13      (Recess from 2:22 p.m. until 2:56 p.m.)

14          THE CLERK:  All rise.  Be seated.

15          MR. ROSEN:  Thank you very much, Your Honor.  As

16 indicated, we have finalized the terms of that stipulation.  It

17 is being filed under certification of counsel right now.  I do

18 have an extra copy for you, Your Honor, that I could hand up.

19          THE COURT:  Okay.

20          MR. ROSEN:  But what we would like to do at this point

21 in the interim, is put on Mr. Klamser, whose testimony is not

22 impacted in any way by that and then get to Mr. Sharp right

23 after that.

24          THE COURT:  All right.

25          MR. ROSEN:  Your Honor, we have at this time Mr.
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1 Klamser.  He is a director and senior managing consultant with

2 KCC, the debtors' voting agent and he would testify with

3 respect to the creditor direct voting classes, rather than

4 those which are the securities classes, Your Honor.

5          We did submit his declaration on Monday as directed by

6 the Court and, Your Honor, at this time I would like to offer

7 up his declaration into evidence.

8          THE COURT:  You may.  Anybody wish to cross-examine

9 him?

10      (No response.)

11          THE COURT:  All right.  I will accept the declaration.

12 (Robert Klamser's declaration received into evidence as

13 Debtor's Exhibit as of today's date.)

14          MR. ROSEN:  Your Honor, that takes us to the testimony

15 of Mr. David Sharp.  Mr. Sharp is a director at KCC also and he

16 would testify regarding the securities voting classes.  Your

17 Honor, may I approach the bench and hand you a copy of the

18 stipulation?

19          THE COURT:  You may.

20          MR. ROSEN:  Your Honor, as I indicated, this

21 stipulation has now been filed under certification of counsel

22 and we'll be presenting it to the Court as soon as it hits the

23 docket and we have copies back for you.

24          I would like to call the Court's attention, however,

25 to one of the recitals which are contained in that stipulation
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1 and I apologize while I locate it.  Specifically, Your Honor,

2 it is on page 5, recital Q, where it talks about the amount of

3 votes that were cast by the TPS funds and specifically, they

4 were cast in the amount of 1,607,225,000 dollars and pursuant

5 to this court's order, that is pursuant to the liquidation

6 preference, the applicable liquidation preference.

7          So, Your Honor, at this time what I would like to do

8 is bring Mr. Sharp up, offer his declaration into evidence and

9 then ask him a question or two as a result of the stipulation

10 itself.

11          THE COURT:  You may.

12          MR. ROSEN:  So, Your Honor, I do have Mr. Sharp's

13 declaration here.  I would like to offer that up into evidence.

14          THE COURT:  All right, you may.

15          MR. ROSEN:  And if Mr. Sharp could approach.

16          THE COURT:  Please step up, remain standing so you can

17 be sworn.

18      (Witness sworn)

19          THE CLERK:  Please state your full name and spell your

20 last name.

21          THE WITNESS:  David Sharp, S-H-A-R-P.

22 DIRECT EXAMINATION

23 BY MR. ROSEN:

24 Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Sharp.

25 A.   Good afternoon.
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1 Q.   Thank you very much.  We have just had admitted into

2 evidence your declaration.  Could you briefly testify as to

3 what the level of acceptances for the Class 19 were prior to

4 the execution of the stipulation that we've talked about

5 already today?

6 A.   The amount accepting prior to the stipulation was sixty-

7 two -- just over sixty-two percent.

8 Q.   And Mr. Sharp, pursuant to the stipulation, do you know

9 how many shares of stock -- excuse me, preferred shares were

10 voted by the TPS funds?

11 A.   Yes, according to the stipulation, there was 1,607,225,000

12 in amount voted to reject.

13 Q.   And Mr. Sharp, pursuant to the stipulation, it provides

14 that those shares which were voted no or to reject the plan,

15 are now going to be considered modified and to be voted to

16 accept the plan nunc pro tunc, back to the time that they were

17 originally tendered.  If that were to be the case, what would

18 the tabulation be with respect to the Class 19 itself?

19 A.   The result would then be 86.7 percent in amount voting to

20 accept.

21 Q.   Okay.

22          MR. ROSEN:  Your Honor, I have no further questions

23 for Mr. Sharp.

24          THE COURT:  Does anybody wish to cross-examine him?

25 Mr. Matache?
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1          MR. MATACHE:  Thank you, Your Honor.  Florin Matache,

2 pro se.  I just have a quick question.

3 CROSS-EXAMINATION

4 BY MR. MATACHE:

5 Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Sharp.

6      Are you aware that the debtors' hired Georgeson, it's I

7 guess a company they use to call the PIERS class or Class 16 to

8 ask them to vote for the plan?

9 A.   I am aware of that, yes.

10 Q.   And no other classes have been contacted by Georgeson,

11 by -- you know, for their services.  It was only for the PIERS

12 class?

13 A.   That is my understanding, yes.

14 Q.   I guess that's all I have then.  Thank you very much.

15          THE COURT:  Thank you.  Any redirect?

16          MR. ROSEN:  No questions.

17          THE COURT:  All right.  Thank you.  You may step down.

18          MR. ROSEN:  Your Honor, as I indicated, we would offer

19 Mr. Sharp's declaration into evidence, along with Mr.

20 Klamser's.

21          THE COURT:  It will be admitted.

22          MR. ROSEN:  Thank you, Your Honor.

23 (David Sharp's declaration was received into evidence as

24 Debtor's Exhibit, as of today's date.)

25          MR. ROSEN:  Your Honor, based upon the four
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1 declarations that have been admitted into evidence, as well as

2 the testimony of Mr. Sharp, that would be the debtors'

3 affirmative case in support of confirmation.

4          THE COURT:  Does anybody else wish to present any

5 testimony or other evidence?  All right.  I'm sorry, there is

6 one person.

7          MR. ROSEN:  Your Honor, as Mr. Berg approaches, we had

8 filed with the Court an exhibit list, as well and at this time,

9 we would like to, as well, move all of those exhibits into

10 evidence.  I don't believe there are any objections to that.

11          THE COURT:  All right.  Hearing none, I will admit

12 those exhibits.

13 (Various debtors exhibits listed received into evidence as

14 Debtors' Exhibits, as of today's date.)

15          MR. BERG:  Thank you, Your Honor.  James Berg

16 appearing pro se.  The Master Mortgage factors appear to a

17 large extent to have been satisfied in this case with the

18 exception of the claims against FDIC-Corporate in my view.

19          THE COURT:  Well, do you have any -- I think first I

20 want to know if you want to introduce any evidence.

21          MR. BERG:  Yes, Your Honor, I do have some FCC filings

22 that I had included with my objection.  I had intended to

23 obtain certified copies of these, so that I could -- so there

24 would be no question as to their authenticity.  I do have

25 copies of those, however they are not certified.  If this court
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1 is willing to entertain them in that fashion, I can go back and

2 get those copies.

3          THE COURT:  Well, do any parties object to my

4 considering those?

5          MR. BERG:  The specific documents are JPMorgan's 2010

6 10-K, their annual report, the 2011 third quarter quarterly

7 report and a 10-K which was filed or rather an 8-K which was

8 filed just this January 13 through the 2011 period.

9          THE COURT:  All right.  Does anybody object to those?

10          MR. SACK:  If he's offering true and complete copies

11 of public filings which are subject to judicial notice, Your

12 Honor, I guess I can object, other than on relevance grounds.

13 I'm not sure what they're being offered for as it relates to

14 this confirmation hearing.

15          THE COURT:  Well -- I'll accept them and we'll see.

16 They will be made part of the record and then I'll hear --

17          MR. BERG:  Thank you, Your Honor.  Would you like

18 to -- me to go obtain those copies right now?

19          THE COURT:  They're attached to your objection, I

20 think.

21          MR. BERG:  Yes, they are.  I do have -- the 8-K

22 that I had mentioned is not attached to my objection.

23          THE COURT:  All right.  Why don't you hand them up

24 then?

25          MR. BERG:  Thank you, Your Honor.
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1          MR. SARGENT:  Your Honor, if I may while he's

2 obtaining that, just -- the equity committee also has an

3 exhibit list.  We would like to move the admission of those

4 document -- I believe there's a fair amount of duplication with

5 the debtors' set.  So I propose that the two of us get together

6 over the next few days and then submit a final list.

7          THE COURT:  It would be helpful not to have

8 duplicates.  That's fine.

9          MR. SARGENT:  Thank you.

10          THE COURT:  Any objection to the equity committee's

11 exhibits?

12      (No response.)

13          THE COURT:  All right.  They will be admitted.

14 (Various documents were hereby received into evidence as Equity

15 Committee Exhibits, as of this date.)

16          MR. BERG:  May I approach, Your Honor?

17          THE COURT:  You may.

18          MR. BERG:  I have one copy for you and one for the --

19          THE COURT:  Thank you.  Any other documents?

20          MR. BERG:  That was the extent of the supporting

21 documents.

22          THE COURT:  Anybody else wish to introduce any

23 evidence?

24          MR. BERG:  Your Honor, I am aware of one other person

25 who had filed a motion to introduce evidence.
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1          THE COURT:  Let's hear if he wants to introduce it.

2          MR. SACKS:  Just on this, Your Honor, these are

3 excerpts, they're selected pages from the public documents.

4 They don't appear to be the full document and again, since

5 there's no indication as to what they are being offered for, if

6 Your Honor is going to take judicial notice, I would ask that

7 you take judicial notice of the entirety of the publicly filed

8 document, not occasional excerpts from pages from it.

9          MR. BERG:  Certainly, Your Honor.  I have included

10 references specifying which SEC filings -- in my objection,

11 there's specifically referenced -- I wasn't certain whether --

12 I included these excerpts primarily for the Court's

13 convenience.  If this court is willing to take judicial notice

14 of those, that --

15          THE COURT:  The entire --

16          MR. BERG:  The entirety of the --

17          THE COURT:  I will take judicial notice of the

18 entirety of those --

19          MR. BERG:  Thank you.

20          THE COURT:  -- filings.  Anybody else?

21          MR. MACHATE:  Florin Machate, pro se.  I was wondering

22 about the October 6, 2011 transcript.  Does it have to -- I

23 mean is it part of the record already or do I have to ask it to

24 be introduced?

25          THE COURT:  Well, you do need to and I will introduce
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1 it.

2          MR. MACHATE:  All right.  That's all I need then.

3          THE COURT:  Thank you.

4          MR. MACHATE:  Thank you.

5          MR. DUKE:  William Duke, pro se.  Good afternoon, Your

6 Honor.  I believe I already have a motion on the itinerary, so

7 would you like me to present this evidence now at this time or

8 wait until that --

9          THE COURT:  Let's hear it now.  It's relevant to the

10 confirmation.

11          MR. DUKE:  I have copies of these documents in

12 question.  Do you want those?

13          THE COURT:  You may hand them up.

14          MR. DUKE:  May I approach?

15          THE COURT:  Yes.

16          MR. DUKE:  Your Honor, without going into argument on

17 my objection, I believe the last time we spoke, you said you

18 would entertain the objection and then we would explore the

19 evidence.  Once again, without arguing that objection, I

20 believe I can state my position.

21          THE COURT:  Well, just identify for the record the

22 documents that you want to be considered part of the record.

23          MR. DUKE:  Very well, Your Honor.  I have documents

24 from WMI, 10-Ks for various year and then -- yeah, 10-Ks for

25 various years.  I also have one page --
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1          THE COURT:  Well, for the record, 1999 through 2007.

2          MR. DUKE:  1999 through 2007.

3          THE COURT:  Thank you; yes.

4          MR. DUKE:  Yes.

5          THE COURT:  All right.

6          MR. DUKE:  And also the last 10-Q, 2008, dated 6/30.

7 I have regulatory filings by JPMorgan, who I believe is still

8 an adversary.  The Board of Federal Reserve Governor's Form

9 FRY9C.  These are for June 30, 2008.

10          THE COURT:  What are the JPMorgan documents you're

11 asking?

12          MR. DUKE:  They're regulatory filings with --

13          THE COURT:  Are they in this packet?

14          MR. DUKE:  I believe so, Your Honor, Attachment B.

15          THE COURT:  Oh, I see.  Well, B is first the Federal

16 Reserve Governor's Form Y9C.

17          MR. DUKE:  Yes, Your Honor.

18          THE COURT:  Okay.

19          MR. DUKE:  Those are for June and September --

20          THE COURT:  Oh, I see.

21          MR. DUKE:  -- of 2008.

22          THE COURT:  Okay.

23          MR. DUKE:  I would like to point out, Your Honor, that

24 I have submitted the complete documents in my first motion and

25 I submit these excerpts just to save paper and save the Court
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1 time, if you will accept these excerpts as representative of

2 the full documents.

3          THE COURT:  All right.  What else?

4          MR. DUKE:  I have an attachment C, excerpts for

5 consolidated reports of condition and income for banks with

6 domestic and foreign offices.  FFIEC 031, these are also

7 relevant to JPMorgan Chase National.  And once again, these are

8 excerpts.  The complete document is in my original motion.

9          I have an attachment D in my original motion, was the

10 complete submission by JPMorgan Chase in support of the

11 previous confirmation.  Once again, I have an excerpt from

12 that, the one page that I consider relevant to my position.

13          I have attachment E which is a periodical by -- let's

14 see, it's by Fred Porneo, Jr. (ph.) and the magazine Bank Owned

15 Life Insurance and Investment Prospective from -- I'm sorry,

16 that was the title of the article and the periodical is Bank

17 Accounting and Finance from April and May of 2007.

18          I also have an article that's attachment F from The

19 Wall Street Journal Online.  It gives a rough outline of what

20 of what BOLI-COLI is and there's also a demonstrative in that

21 article.  There's a caption there which alludes to the transfer

22 of the BOLI funds in 2008 to JPMorgan.

23          And then I have attachment G which are -- is a random

24 Google search.  The terms of that search are sanctions for

25 JPMorgan and enforcement and against JPMorgan.  I bring that to
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1 the Court's attention as pattern of behavior.

2          THE COURT:  Any objection to these documents?

3          MR. SACKS:  Yes, Your Honor.

4          MR. DUKE:  This is someone else's.

5          MR. SACKS:  I obviously don't object to your

6 consideration of our prior submissions in this case, whether in

7 the first, second or now the third confirmation hearing.

8 Object to the regulatory filings as not relevant -- I mean,

9 assuming they are genuine and accurate, they're not relevant to

10 any issue before the Court.  The Court has already ruled on the

11 good faith and reasonableness of the settlement.  The issues

12 related in JPMorgan Chase are not relevant to any confirmation

13 issues still pending before the Court.

14          I object to Exhibit E.  Don't know what it's being

15 offered for but I object to it on hearsay and lack of

16 foundation.  There's been no testimony about it.  It's some

17 periodical that is apparently being offered for some unknown

18 purpose.  Except to -- object to Exhibit F, Wall Street Journal

19 Online article, also on hearsay grounds and relevance grounds.

20 It doesn't appear to be relevant, other than to try to slander

21 JPMorgan Chase in some way.  It's irrelevant to any issue in

22 this case.  And similarly, Exhibit G, a Google search of

23 sanctions of some sort, again object to it on hearsay,

24 foundation grounds and relevance grounds.  It doesn't appear to

25 be relevant as well to any issue in this case.
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1          MR. MASTANDO:  John Mastando on behalf of the debtors,

2 Your Honor.  I also note just in Exhibit A, again it does not

3 appear to be -- it's not the complete documents and there -- I

4 don't know if this is in the filed version, but the version

5 that we were given has handwriting on it that I don't believe

6 is in the original and then we join in the objections as to the

7 other documents, as well.

8          THE COURT:  Well, do you object to any of the

9 consideration of excerpts or the full consolidated WMI reports?

10          MR. MASTANDO:  Again, as to the full reports, I think

11 it just goes to relevance.  I'm not sure exactly what the

12 relevance is in the context of this confirmation hearing.

13          THE COURT:  Well, I would do this.  I will allow

14 excerpts -- excuse, Attachments A and B and C and D because it

15 appears they're public filings.  I'll reserve any ruling as to

16 whether they're relevant to anything I decide, but I will

17 exclude your attachments E, F and G, which are hearsay.

18          MR. DUKE:  If I may, Your Honor?  Attachment E is

19 actually representative of the definition of BOLI -- BOLI

20 funds.  It --

21          THE COURT:  Well, but it's an out-of-court statement

22 of what that is.  So it can't substitute for a witness.  Okay?

23          MR. DUKE:  As far as relevance to that -- perhaps I am

24 pressing it here, Your Honor, but it's my position that the

25 BOLI fund is of -- made of different components and that the
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1 BOLI policies are only one component of the BOLI fund.  I offer

2 that document in support.  The GSA and the POR deal only with

3 the policies which are not the bulk of the BOLI funds.

4          THE COURT:  All right.  You can save that for argument

5 but I am not going to admit those newspaper or other online

6 articles.

7          MR. DUKE:  Thank you, Your Honor.  That kind of

8 undercuts my support for that argument but I appreciate the

9 Court's time.  Thank you.

10          THE COURT:  All right.

11 (Documents A, B, C and D are admitted as William Duke Exhibits,

12 as of today's date.)

13          THE COURT:  All right.  No other exhibits?

14          MR. DUKE:  From me?  No, Your Honor.

15          THE COURT:  From anybody?

16          MR. BERG:  Thank you, Your Honor.  James Berg, again.

17 You just mentioned -- is now not the time for oral argument?

18 Am I being a little premature?

19          THE COURT:  I'm waiting to see if there's anybody else

20 who has any exhibits and it appears there might be.

21          MR. SHERWOOD:  Your Honor, Jack Sherwood, Lowenstein

22 Sandler for the MBS plaintiffs.  We filed an objection to

23 confirmation which is resolved in part by virtue of the

24 stipulation concerning the reserve but in our objection, we

25 refer to various motions that have been filed in the case,
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1 statements on the record by parties and I was just going to

2 refer to those during the course of argument but to the extent

3 the Court wants parties in opposition to make references to

4 evidence, I just wanted to get up and indicate that we're going

5 to reserve to -- we're going to refer to the record and the

6 docket of this case during the course of our argument and

7 respectfully ask the Court to consider that.

8          THE COURT:  All right.  Well, I won't consider the

9 entire record but -- or docket but to the extent it's

10 referenced in their objection -- any objection to my

11 considering that pleadings were filed and statements were made

12 on the record?

13          MR. ROSEN:  Pleadings filed, absolutely fine, Your

14 Honor.  With respect to statements on the record, I have no

15 idea who made the statements.  I have no idea what the veracity

16 of any of those statements may be.  So to the extent that he

17 wants to say that John Doe may have said something, John Doe

18 may have said it.  I just don't know whether it's true or not.

19          THE COURT:  I hope it was true if it was made by an

20 officer of court or a witness --

21          MR. ROSEN:  But he didn't --

22          THE COURT:  -- at the hearing.

23          MR. ROSEN:  Right, I understand that.  He just said

24 somebody at the hearing.  I have no idea what we're referring

25 to.  That's all I'm saying, Your Honor.
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1          THE COURT:  Well, to the extent it's referenced in

2 your objection --

3          MR. SHERWOOD:  Right.

4          THE COURT:  -- I'll consider it and --

5          MR. SHERWOOD:  And actually --

6          MR. ROSEN:  To the extent it was a representation or a

7 statement by a witness, certainly by WMI, I have no problem

8 with that, Your Honor.

9          THE COURT:  All right.

10          MR. SHERWOOD:  Thank you, Your Honor.

11          MR. SARGENT:  Your Honor, it's Edgar Sargent again

12 from Susman, Godfrey on behalf of the equity committee.  We've

13 already been able to eliminate the duplicates on our list.  So

14 actually all we need to move is the admission of EC-327 and 328

15 and the rest of our list is duplicative of the debtors and can

16 be stricken.

17          THE COURT:  Give me the numbers again.

18          MR. SARGENT:  327, 328.

19          THE COURT:  All right.

20          MR. SARGENT:  Thank you very much.

21 (Prior Equity Committee exhibits admitted on today's record are

22 withdrawn and only Exhibits EC-327 and 328 are admitted as

23 Equity Committee Exhibits of today's date.)

24          THE COURT:  All right.  Shall I hear from the

25 objecting -- remaining objecting parties first?
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1          MR. ROSEN:  That would be fine with us, Your Honor.

2          MR. BERG:  Thank you, Your Honor.  James Berg

3 appearing pro se.  Perhaps I should start from the beginning,

4 so I don't end up off track.  There's no mistaking the momentum

5 that's been building towards confirmation and I just wanted to

6 make sure I addressed a few issues that I believe are -- should

7 still be outstanding.

8          Bankruptcy courts consider the following factors known

9 as the Master Mortgage factors to determine whether a release

10 by a debtor should be approved:  whether there's an identity of

11 interest between the debtor and the third-party such that a

12 suit against a non-debtor is, in essence, a suit against a

13 debtor or will deplete assets of the estate;

14          (2) Whether the non-debtor has made a substantial

15 contribution of assets to the reorganization;

16          (3) The essential nature of the release to the

17 reorganization of the -- to the extent that without the

18 release, there's little likelihood of success;

19          (4) An agreement by a substantial majority of

20 creditors to support the release, specifically if the infected

21 class or classes overwhelmingly vote to accept the plan;

22           (5) Whether there is a provision in the plan for

23 payment of all or substantially all of the claims of the

24 classes -- class or classes affected by the release.

25          That's In Re: Master Mortgage Investment Fund
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1 Incorporated.

2          THE COURT:  All right.

3          MR. BERG:  Under statute, not all the Master Mortgage

4 factors need apply to approve the debtors' release of claims.

5          With respect to FDIC-Corporate, I would argue that

6 only one of these, basically number four, thanks to the trust

7 preferred securities group, changing their vote today, has been

8 met.

9          THE COURT:  Well, I don't mean to interrupt but I

10 think that I did decide at the first confirmation hearing long

11 ago that the settlement with the FDIC-Corporate and Receiver,

12 was reasonable and fair.

13          MR. BERG:  Your Honor, in your January opinion,

14 rather, your -- you said the settlement with the FDIC was

15 reasonable and fair.  Your definition of FDIC was the Federal

16 Deposit Insurance Corporation.  It did not specify corporate or

17 receiver and later it only specified receiver or rather

18 corporate in one place, namely, that they were a signatory to

19 the GSA.

20          The factors you cited -- might I have a moment while I

21 skip ahead and try to justify my argument -- all right.  Okay.

22 Here we are.  In their response to my objection, the debtors'

23 state, "The Bankruptcy court already has determined that FDIC-

24 Corporate and FDIC-Receiver have made a substantial

25 contribution to the plan by waiving claims they had asserted
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1 against numerous assets of the debtors and by waiving the proof

2 of claim they have filed."  January opinion at 65.  That is a

3 quote from the debtors' response to the omnibus response to

4 objections to the plan of reorganization.

5          However, that is not what it says in the opinion.  It

6 does state that the FDIC made a substantial contribution, that

7 the FDIC is earlier defined as the Federal Deposit Insurance

8 Company.  My motion at that time was made of FDIC-Corporate,

9 other than to mention that they were a signatory to the GSA.

10 All of the evidence in the January opinion and in later

11 September opinion, point to this court's understanding that

12 FDIC receiver was indeed the one being referenced.

13          In particular, when difficulties in collection are

14 mentioned, the FDIC receivers limited assets are mentioned,

15 primarily the 1.888 billion dollars JPMorgan paid for the

16 assets.  But there's no mention of FDIC-Corporate, where

17 there's tens of billions in the deposit insurance fund or its

18 100 billion dollar line of credit with the Treasury.  When the

19 causes of the release are mentioned, they include all of the

20 conflicting asset related claims and again, no mention is made

21 of WMI's claims against FDIC-Corporate for its failure to

22 maximize the value of the estate, for dissipation of WMB's

23 assets, for the taking of the debtors' property without just

24 compensation or for the conversion of those assets.

25          THE COURT:  All right.  I think I understand your
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1 argument on that point.  Did you have any other?

2          MR. BERG:  Yes, Your Honor.  Would you -- I had a

3 thing or more regarding the FDIC, however I am assuming that --

4          THE COURT:  I have read your --

5          MR. BERG:  -- you're not interested in that.

6          THE COURT:  I've read the objection.  I --

7          MR. BERG:  I would then like to address the interest

8 on the debtors' deposit accounts with JPMorgan Chase.  The

9 settlement which was considered by the Court in December of

10 2010 was to be effective by January 31, 2011, a date

11 integrative to the fairness of the settlement.  Now, however,

12 the GSA will not -- likely not go effective before the end of

13 February 2012, thirteen months later.

14          Every day deprives the debtors of access to more than

15 the four billion dollars in cash improperly held at JPMC.  On

16 account of the point six-seven billion dollar balance in the

17 account number ending in 4234, only eighteen million dollars in

18 interest has been accrued from the petition date through

19 December 31, 2011.  This is an average of 15.1 basis points or

20 0.151 percent per year.  As confirmed in the quality and annual

21 reports, JPMC's average rate of return on interest earning

22 assets was 5.36 percent for 2008, 4.04 percent for 2009, 3.83

23 percent for 2010 and approximately 3.6 percent in 2011.

24          This suggests that JPMC could have earned more than

25 475 million dollar on those deposits from the petition date
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1 through September 30, 2011.  If the plan goes effective in

2 February 2012, JPMC will have earned another five months of

3 interest.  The rate JPMC has paid on the deposit has declined

4 at 5.1 basis points on an annualized basis as of the November

5 2011 monthly operating report.  That is approximately five-one-

6 hundredths of one percent per year.

7          As shown in table NOR-1 of the December 2011 monthly

8 operating report, the tax refund account at Bank of America

9 returned 666,134 dollars, a 142 basis points per annum.  That

10 is over twenty-seven times the rate the debtors reported JPMC

11 to have paid in November 2011 and over nine times the rate that

12 JPMC has averaged up to December 31, 2011.

13          Based upon this similarly large tax refund deposit

14 account, I can only conclude the 5.1 basis points is far below

15 market rates.  Absent the settlement, the debtors may be

16 entitled to collect prejudgment interest from JPMC in a far

17 greater amount based on the State of Washington's twelve

18 percent prejudgment interest rate or 1200 basis points per

19 annum, WMI should be due roughly 1.64 billion dollars in

20 prejudgment interest from the petition date through February

21 2012.

22          As the Court noted in its opinion, there's a strong

23 likelihood of success on the merits of the debtors' claims to

24 the roughly four billion dollars in the disputed deposit

25 accounts, opinion at 26.  As a result, not only would the
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1 debtors be entitled to the return of those funds, but they

2 would also be entitled to recover this prejudgment interest

3 from JPMC.  See, for example, Black Diamond Mining Company v.

4 Hazard Cool Sales, LLC, In Re: Black Diamond Mining Company --

5          THE COURT:  Well I think again, you're rearguing the

6 settlement with JPMorgan.

7          MR. BERG:  Your Honor, I am attempting to argue that

8 the delays inherent in this case have benefitted JPMorgan to an

9 unfair extent.  I am not attempting to attack the global

10 settlement at all.  I believe the global settlement should go

11 forward.  I mainly believe that they have benefitted unfairly

12 since your opinion and should compensate the estate at least to

13 the extent of their profit, perhaps not the 1,200 basis points

14 that Washington Mutual -- or Washington State law would require

15 but at least to the extent of their -- the benefit that they

16 had received through the delays that have occurred.

17          THE COURT:  All right.  I think I understand.

18          MR. BERG:  All right.  Your Honor, in conclusion, to

19 be consistent with this court's prior rulings, I believe

20 FDIC-Corporate should not be provided a release from Washington

21 Mutual.  JPMC could have -- should also provide additional

22 consideration to adequately compensate WMI for the deposit

23 which they have held since petition date.  I would be happy to

24 address any questions you have at this time.

25          THE COURT:  No, thank you.
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1          Any other objecting party wish to be heard?

2          MS. GORENBERG:  Yes, this is Mariam Gorenberg, pro se

3 shareholder.  Shall I spell that?

4          THE COURT:  Yes.

5          MS. GORENBERG:  That's G as in Green, O-R-E-N-B-E-R-G,

6 as in Green.

7          THE COURT:  Thank you.

8          MS. GORENBERG:  You're welcome.

9          THE COURT:  You may go ahead.

10          MS. GORENBERG:  I do not object to confirmation but I

11 do have a limited objection concerning the effectiveness of the

12 releases.  My objection is limited entirely to the relief

13 election mechanism in the voting ballot which I assert is not

14 sufficient to support effective third-party releases, attempts

15 of any respondent who did not affirmatively consent to the plan

16 by voting yes.

17          Debtors provided no effective opt-in provision on the

18 ballot, other than the option to vote yes, without any other

19 opportunity to manifest an opt-in, all such elections have been

20 deemed as opt-in by debtors.  Shareholders can have provided --

21 cannot have provided effective affirmative consent because no

22 such method was available.

23          There is a significant distinction between a deemed

24 election and an affirmative election.  A deemed election is

25 passive.  It cannot be affirmative.  I have also seen the
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1 Court's conclusion found on page 84 of the January 7 opinion.

2 The ballot is structured to impose an unreasonable and

3 redundant condition on respondent by extracting from

4 shareholders an opt-out election of releases that serves no

5 essential purpose other than to be punitive by design.

6          In accordance with the opinion, respondents who did

7 not affirmatively vote yes withheld effective release, simply

8 for having failed to vote n favor of a plan.  Without a yes

9 vote, there's no effective release and no further election

10 should have been necessary because the condition had already

11 been caused.  Furthermore, I think a yes vote in favor of the

12 plan cannot extend to a release deemed granted by the debtors.

13 Affirmative consent cannot occur with no affirmative election

14 having been generated at all by the voting party.

15          The need to impose the opt-out election on

16 shareholders was an unnecessary invention as a non-yes ballot

17 is intrinsically insufficient to grant effective release.  Yes

18 -- ballot instructions directed shareholders to affirmatively

19 opt-out and in doing so, shareholders relinquished entitled

20 distributions that could have been retained while still holding

21 -- while still withholding effective relief.

22          This group of respondents would include both whose

23 non-votes have been deemed yes, respondents who submitted

24 definitive no votes and it would include ballots with release

25 elections occurring later than the voting deadline.  None had
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1 provided an affirmative election but instead had confirmed to

2 have done so by the debtors and there was a distinction to be

3 made between an actual grant of the lease and a deemed release,

4 one effective, one is not.

5          THE COURT:  All right.  Does the debtor want to --

6          MS. GORENBERG:  I'm sorry, just a moment.  I lost my

7 place.

8          THE COURT:  All right.

9          MS. GORENBERG:  I submit that none of the respondents

10 have provided effective releases and that the debtors' process

11 of deeming releases to have been granted by means of an

12 unselected opt-out election serves no beneficial purpose and it

13 is flawed.  The opt-out box on the ballot gathers no

14 information that did not already exist on any ballot with no

15 affirmative yes vote.  The only reason to require an opt-out

16 provision on the ballot is to create a false dynamic which

17 required a voting class of 16, 19 and 22, to choose between

18 receiving a distribution or withholding relief.

19          There should have been no election on the ballot that

20 would contractually obligate a shareholder into affirmatively

21 giving up entitled distribution in exchange for the right to

22 withhold release and it already existed by voting yes.  With

23 the exception of non-voting Class 21, no opt-in mechanism has

24 been made available on the ballot for any respondent to

25 actively engage in a mechanism which would cause consent.
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1 Voting was optional, the release election was optional, the

2 ballots were designed such that it is possible to return them

3 having engaged no mechanism and having indicated nothing.  With

4 no mechanism -- where no mechanism has been engaged, where is

5 the affirmative consent?  It hasn't happened.  In my opinion, I

6 argue the granted releases debtors have obtained and deemed

7 effective are neither granted nor effective if pulled from non-

8 yes voting respondents as they bear no resemblance to what the

9 Court ruled in its January 7, 2011 opinion.  The Court need

10 look no further than what it concluded on page 84.

11          The September opinion which plan proponents submit and

12 support for the release election did not in any way examine the

13 liability under the voting election mechanism because the Court

14 was not asked to consider it.  Because the releases obtained by

15 the debtors are ineffective, I assert they are non-binding and

16 I and those similarly situated have granted non-effective

17 releases to the signatories found in Classes 41.6, 41.7 and

18 41.8 of the plan.  I reserve all rights accordingly.  Plan

19 proponents must provide a mechanism for shareholders to grant

20 effective release, despite protestations to the contrary, this

21 should not be difficult to accomplish and either would be

22 required to establish effective affirmative consent release

23 with a canceled check via the liquidation trust.  Thank you.

24          THE COURT:  All right.  Thank you.  I understand your

25 argument.
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1          Anybody else?

2          MR. ROQUEMORE:  Good afternoon, Your Honor.  James

3 Roquemore, I represent the American National Insurance Company

4 litigation against JPMorgan, the plaintiffs.  Thank you.

5          Your Honor, we filed a limited objection because

6 there's inconsistencies in the plan and the plan provides where

7 there's in consistencies, the confirmation order may provide a

8 remedy to that.  And, Your Honor, we're asking for simple and

9 clear language in order to clear up the inconsistencies.

10          And the language we've put in our limited objection

11 are the -- for four paragraphs at the end, A through D, we're

12 simply asking for that language to be put into the confirmation

13 order.  That language, Your Honor, just incidentally, is

14 derived from court orders and from the plan and from the global

15 settlement agreement itself.

16          Your Honor, primarily our objection goes in order to

17 preserve the status quo, the litigation that we have pending in

18 the District of Columbia, District Court.  As Your Honor knows,

19 on June 24, the Court of Appeals of the District of Columbia

20 Circuit remanded our case with construction to the District

21 Court of the District of Columbia to examine in the first

22 instance, the issue of standing vis-a-vis American National and

23 the FDIC.

24          Those issues go to the ownership of the claims at

25 issue in the litigation.  The plan itself as is drafted, could
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1 be construed as releasing some parts of the claims that

2 American National is asserting against JPMorgan.

3          THE COURT:  Wasn't this cleared up?  Aren't the direct

4 claims reserved?

5          MR. ROQUEMORE:  Your Honor, yes, the direct claims are

6 reserved.  However, pending before the Court are more than just

7 whether American National has the right to proceed direct

8 claims.  There's an alternative argument that American National

9 has claims that may be characterized as not direct, derivative

10 of the FDIC but the American National has the right to pursue

11 those because of the FDIC's conflict of interest, abandonment

12 of the claims, and a lack of real controversy or lack of case

13 in controversy.

14          Your Honor, both those issues Judge Collyer in the

15 District of Columbia, established a briefing schedule and

16 during the fall of -- and the winter of last year, we briefed

17 those issues and they are fully briefed and pending before the

18 District of Columbia.

19          This plan purports can be read to release claims that

20 are derivative of the FDIC, whether or not the FDIC has the

21 right to pursue those claims.  Your Honor has been on the

22 record saying that you're not making a decision as to who owns

23 those claims.  And ownership, the incident of ownership has to

24 do with who has the right to pursue those claims and so there

25 is an inconsistency as to whether or not the plan releases all
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1 of the claims that could be characterized as derivative which

2 are in the District of Columbia at this point in time or

3 whether or not those claims are reserved for the District of

4 Columbia court.

5          And, Your Honor, that's an inconsistency that can be

6 cleared up by simple language in the plan which preserves all

7 the issues that are pending before the District of Columbia

8 court with regard to the standing issue and essential method in

9 this order, the global settlement, all the plan documents

10 relating to any of the above shall any bearing or determination

11 of any question of law or fact identified by the Court of

12 Appeals for the District of Columbia in American National

13 Insurance Company that may be considered by the District Court

14 in the ANICO litigation.

15          Essentially, Your Honor --

16          THE COURT:  I understand.

17          MR. ROQUEMORE:  -- the Court of Appeals asked for

18 those issues to be briefed and now they're pending.  We're

19 asking for the status quo to be preserved.

20          THE COURT:  I understand.  All right.

21          MR. ROQUEMORE:  Thank you, Your Honor.  And in our

22 limited objection, we do go through how we believe the case --

23 the plan is ambiguous and the effect of the stipulation being

24 drafted in its particular way.  We believe our plan -- our

25 confirmation order language is clear, it's simple.  It provides
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1 certainty to the parties.  It provides certainty to the Court

2 knowing that this decision is not affected by decisions that

3 are made here.  It doesn't prejudice JPMorgan or the FDIC since

4 a court does allow -- is going to decide these cases, these

5 issues as to these claims.

6          And finally, these claims, I just want to reiterate,

7 have nothing to do with the debtors.  These are not claims

8 against the debtors, of the debtors and they don't implicate

9 the debtors at all.  So, they are purely third-party claims

10 against non-debtors.  So they cannot be released under First

11 Circuit law without consent or consideration being given and --

12 which we adamantly deny that that's been given.

13          THE COURT:  All right.

14          MR. ROQUEMORE:  Thank you, Your Honor.

15          THE COURT:  Thank you.

16          MR. BERG:  Your Honor, James Berg again.  I'm sorry, I

17 apologize.  Due to Your Honor's questioning earlier, I failed

18 to come back to the main point which I believe needed to be

19 made regarding the Master Mortgage factors.  The factor five is

20 in agreement by a substantial majority of creditors support

21 release, specifically if the infected class or classes

22 overwhelmingly vote to accept the plan.  Oh, wait, that's four.

23 Sorry.

24          Five; whether there's a provision in the plan for

25 payment of all or substantially all of the claims to the class
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1 or classes effected by the release.  It is my view that pursuit

2 of litigation against FDIC-Corporate would provide a

3 substantial recovery for both preferred and common equity and

4 that's all I will say on the fifth factor.

5          But I would like to skip back to the fourth factor;

6 with the TPS change in voting now 86.7 percent of the preferred

7 class in 19 had voted to accept the plan.  This factor appears

8 to be met.  However, due to the requirements of FIRREA, the

9 individual shareholders who had voted to reject or opt-out of

10 the releases who have no authority to pursue FDIC-Corporate,

11 due to the requirements of FIRREA, the specific requirements of

12 the FIRREA claims process.

13          Also, the statute of limitations due to the length of

14 this case, will elapse, so that anyone who would otherwise have

15 been able to pursue FDIC-Corporate directly will not be able

16 to, once the debtors release their claims against FDIC-

17 Corporate.

18          As such, it would be inequitable to provide a release

19 solely on this factor alone, since that appears to be the only

20 one which has been met of the five Master Mortgage factors.

21 Thank you, Your Honor.

22          THE COURT:  Thank you.

23          MR. SHERWOOD:  Your Honor, Jack Sherwood, Lowenstein

24 Sandler for the MBS plaintiffs who are the Chicago Police

25 Pension Fund, the Boilermakers Annuity Fund, and Doral Bank.
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1          Your Honor, point one of our objection related to the

2 reserve and in response to that objection, the debtors have

3 established a reserve or have agreed to establish a reserve for

4 Class 12 in the amount of 435 million dollars that remains in

5 place until further order of the Court.  So that would appear

6 to resolve that part of the objection.  We'd only ask that this

7 be memorialized in some type of writing, like an amendment to

8 the plan or the confirmation order and we have a chance to look

9 at that.

10          That leads to the second point of the objection, Your

11 Honor, and we've covered this a little bit before, but the last

12 time we were here, Your Honor said that this is something that

13 we could cover at confirmation and that is the deliberate

14 failure of the debtors to take a position as to whether the MBS

15 plaintiffs belong in Class 12 or Class 18.  We submit that this

16 is a violation of Section 1122 and is a manipulation of our

17 voting right that would warrant denial of confirmation.

18          We did file, Your Honor, a motion for classification

19 that was -- that we asked to have returnable today.  Based on

20 the opposition to hearing that on short notice, the Court has

21 adjourned that motion to March 14.

22          In addition, Your Honor, when we were last before the

23 Court in the context of our 3018 motion, we tried to press the

24 issue that we were in Class 12 and sought some type of judicial

25 determination from the Court, which we didn't get.
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1          And, Your Honor, I just want the record to be clear,

2 that the MBS plaintiffs since we filed our proof of claim and

3 since the seventh amended plan was filed, have pressed for some

4 type of determination as to whether we are in Class 12 or Class

5 18.

6 To be clear, we believe that we have a valid Class 12 claim and

7 that position is based in large part on this court's decision

8 in Tranquility.

9          And the problem that we have is that we hear from the

10 debtor and the committee, mixed messages.  In some respects,

11 they take the position that we belong in Class 18, yet on the

12 other hand, they have allowed our claim in Class 12 for voting

13 purposes.  For example, in the debtors' disclosure statement,

14 they provide a Section 3(b) that the debtors believe that the

15 MBS plaintiffs is properly classified in Class 18, all right?

16 And in the debtors' opposition to the hearing on the

17 classification motion on short notice which is docket number

18 9612, the debtors again say that the implication under the

19 terms of the stipulation that gave rise to our right to file

20 the proof of claim is that the claim belongs in Class 18.

21          On the other hand, the last time we were before the

22 Court at the hearing on the 3018 motion, Mr. Rosen accused us

23 of suffering neurosis because it was his view, and I think this

24 is a direct quote and the quote is in page 21 of our

25 opposition, "The debtors never took the position that the claim
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1 if allowed would belong in Class 18."

2          There is an inconsistency, Your Honor, and I don't

3 think this is a neurosis.  This is -- and this sort of defines

4 the problem.  It illustrates the problem and --

5          THE COURT:  Well, it may be a problem but the Court

6 will not resolve all claims before it will consider

7 confirmation of a plan.  That can't be the rule.  We'd never

8 get to confirmation.

9          MR. SHERWOOD:  Understood.  Understood.  And we are

10 not -- and again, Your Honor, I think one of the arguments, one

11 of the tactics that the debtors have used is to accuse us of

12 doing something that we're not doing.

13          We're not seeking litigation of this 435 million

14 dollar claim.  We don't want the Court to determine whether

15 there's liability on the part of the estate or damages or what

16 they are.

17          THE COURT:  I know.  You want me to determine what

18 class you're in.

19          MR. SHERWOOD:  Correct.

20          THE COURT:  I'm not going to do that before

21 confirmation.

22          MR. SHERWOOD:  I --

23          THE COURT:  And you asked to vote in Class 12.  You

24 could have asked to vote in Class 18.

25          MR. SHERWOOD:  I understand, Your Honor.
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1          THE COURT:  I understand you're between a rock and a

2 hard place in doing that though but --

3          MR. SHERWOOD:  It does and I understand the Court's --

4 we've kind of had the discussion before but let me just finish

5 and I know you want to -- you understand but I just want to

6 make the record.

7          THE COURT:  You may.

8          MR. SHERWOOD:  Again, we are in a -- the Court

9 realizes that we are in a rock and a hard place because while

10 the debtor has agreed that we're in class 12 for voting

11 purposes, they reserve the right to contend that we're in Class

12 18 down the road and that puts us in a rock -- between a rock

13 and a hard place because, you know, if you look at the plan,

14 right, you have Class 18 and you have the issue of the absolute

15 priority rule which the debtor fully understands, and the

16 committee, everybody understands that's an issue here.  And the

17 only way that they have overcome that issue in the context of

18 this case has been by the vote.

19          And if you look at the voting members of Class 18, you

20 have Tranquility, you have the LTW Dime warrants and you have

21 the G and E Group and I guess now you're going to have Mr.

22 Stark's client.  Every one of these voting class members have

23 received some other type of plan consideration.  None of them

24 are pure Class 18 holders.  Tranquility, Your Honor approved

25 the settlement this morning, they got a nine million dollar
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1 Class 12 claim.  LTW also got a nine million dollar Class 12

2 claim plus some equity.  The G and E group got their counsel

3 fees paid by the debtor.  They got a seat on the trust board

4 and they got allowance of the claims of members of the class

5 individually.

6          So, Class 18 under this plan is really being trampled

7 and it's been sort of stacked with voting members who are

8 getting some other valuable plan -- more valuable plan

9 consideration, so they have incentive to vote in favor of the

10 plan.

11          The MBS plaintiffs are a potential Class 18 member.

12 Again, we think we're in Class 12 but they want to put us in

13 Class 18 and the point is, Your Honor, if we're ever going to

14 be in Class 18, we would like to know that before confirmation

15 not after.

16          THE COURT:  Why?  What difference would it make?

17          MR. SHERWOOD:  Because if we knew, if Your Honor told

18 us that we were in Class 18 and we knew that today, we would

19 vote our claim in Class 18 and we would object to the plan

20 based on violation of the absolute priority rule, 435 million

21 dollars would carry that class with ease and they would have a

22 big problem.

23          THE COURT:  Well, if you had asked to vote in that

24 class in that amount, they might have objected to that and

25 contested the amount of the claim.
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1          MR. SHERWOOD:  Which we thought they might have done

2 in the context of the Rule 3018 motion but they didn't.

3          THE COURT:  Because you asked to vote in Class 12.

4          MR. SHERWOOD:  Because we believe we're in Class 12.

5 Your Honor, we believe we're in Class 12 and you know, we

6 weren't going to file a ballot or seek to vote in Class 18

7 because we believe we're in Class 12 based on Tranquility.

8          Your Honor, I will wind this up because I think you

9 understand my argument but I do believe there is authority for

10 the Court determining the classification in the context of

11 confirmation.  One of the things that I can cite to is the

12 solicitation order that was entered in this case at paragraph 6

13 when it talks about the 3018 procedure motion and in paragraph

14 6 it says, "if any creditor seeks to challenge the allowance or

15 disallowance of its claim for voting purposes, i.e., the

16 creditor believes it should be entitled to vote or believes it

17 should be entitled to vote in a different class or amount, that

18 creditor should file a 3018 motion."

19          So that language of that order put the burden on a

20 creditor who believed that it was in the wrong class on filing

21 the motion.  We filed the motion.  The flip side of that is

22 that the debtor in the context of this 3018 motion should have

23 filed a response if they believe that we were not in the right

24 class.

25          Your Honor, also in Your Honor's Tranquility opinion,

Page 96

VERITEXT REPORTING COMPANY
212-267-6868 www.veritext.com 516-608-2400



WASHINGTON MUTUAL, INC., et al.

1 you held at page 16 of that opinion that "an adversary

2 proceeding was not required for classification but rather that

3 where subordination is sought in the context of confirmation,

4 it could be decided in the context of confirmation."

5          And then lastly, Your Honor, there's a case Stonehedge

6 Properties, 191 BR 59, Bankruptcy Middle District of

7 Pennsylvania at page 63 which says that "Confirmation of a plan

8 acts to bar attempts by the parties to relitigate any of the

9 matters that could have been raised during the bankruptcy

10 proceeding."

11          These authorities, Your Honor, I cite for the

12 proposition that if the debtor or the committee or anyone had a

13 problem with our Class 12 status, they should have raised it

14 and because they did not raise it, we have acted and based on

15 Your Honor's Tranquility decision, like a Class 12 creditor and

16 if someone had a problem with that, they should have raised it

17 because if they did raise it, and the Tranquility motion to

18 reconsider that we talked about this morning by the committee

19 and the adjournment of that is another example.  This is an

20 argument that could have been decided.  We asked for it to be

21 decided.  The Court and these very parties were poised to

22 relitigate Tranquility on February 1 but they chose not to do

23 it because they were afraid that they might win.  If they won,

24 and suddenly we're in Class 18, they ruin the plan.

25          So we have acted and relied on Tranquility and to the
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1 extent that that state of affairs is going to change, we submit

2 that due process and fundamental fairness would require that

3 that change occur before this confirmation hearing is over.

4          And in terms of the law, this is really an unusual set

5 of facts and I'm not aware of any case that says it's right or

6 wrong, right, to allow a debtor to consent to a claim for

7 voting purposes and then reserve the right to put the claim in

8 another class.

9          But I would say, Your Honor, that, you know, the law

10 talks about 1122 and class of -- you know, good faith

11 classification of claims within the same class, is part of the

12 Court's analysis at confirmation.  And the ability of a debtor

13 to classify and use classification to cram down a plan is not

14 unfettered.  You know, to the extent that there is potential or

15 abuse or actual abuse, the plan should not be confirmed.  We

16 have cited, for example, the 500 Fifth Avenue case by Judge

17 Brosnan in the Southern District of New York.  And that case

18 stands for, you know, criticism of gerrymandering and things

19 like that.

20          We've also cited the decision by Judge Robreno at the

21 district court level in the Armstrong, which spoke of class

22 skipping and class manipulation.

23          So, Your Honor, while this tactic is kind of new, this

24 isn't sort of creating a deficiency -- a separate class for a

25 deficiency claim of a secured lender and it's not a gifting
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1 case but this scheme of taking inconsistent positions with

2 respect to our claim does operate to prejudice us.  It is

3 manipulation and it should not be allowed here.

4          THE COURT:  All right, I understand.

5          MR. SHERWOOD:  I think I've covered the arguments with

6 respect to that.  Let me just say that we believe that these

7 inconsistent positions give rise to judicial estoppel because

8 the debtors are deliberately asserting inconsistent positions

9 in order to gain an advantage.  They're sort of playing fast

10 and loose with classification and they should not be able to

11 assert later that MBS belongs in Class 18.

12          And I would also respectfully submit that one -- if

13 they don't seek to put us in Class 18 before confirmation, that

14 the confirmation order should be res judicata that we are in

15 Class 12 --

16          THE COURT:  I understand.

17          MR. SHERWOOD:  -- because they've had multiple

18 opportunities to put us in Class 18 but they haven't.

19          Your Honor, we did raise two other minor arguments,

20 one reserved -- one concerned the preservation of our rights to

21 proceed with claims against the debtors to available

22 insurance -- with respect to available insurance.  I think this

23 objection is probably moot because the MBS plaintiffs aren't

24 seeking to proceed against the debtors outside of this court

25 and I should add that you know, with this 435 million dollar
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1 escrow out there, I assume that the creditors and the parties

2 are anxious to get the matter resolved and the MBS plaintiffs

3 are, too and we are ready to go in terms of that litigation as

4 soon as the debtors, the committee and this court are ready to

5 hear us.

6          And lastly, and I thank the Court for its patience

7 with me, but this is really the last thing, the extension -- we

8 did talk about the extension of stays and injunctions under the

9 plan being prejudicial.  I think we're okay with the plan as is

10 with respect to that.  The debtors are not a party to the

11 litigation in Washington and they're not giving any releases to

12 non-debtors as provided in Section 41.6 of the plan.  So we can

13 get more discovery if we need it in the contested matter that's

14 pending in this court.

15          If the Court has no questions, I'm threw and thank you

16 again for hearing me.

17          THE COURT:  All right.  Thank you.  Let me hear from

18 the debtors' response to everybody.  Everybody's been given a

19 chance.

20          MR. ROSEN:  Your Honor, perhaps we could let Mr. Sacks

21 address the ANICO issue first.

22          THE COURT:  Okay.

23          MR. SACKS:  Good afternoon, Your Honor.  Robert Sacks

24 for JPMorgan Chase.  This appears to be an issue that just will

25 not die, Your Honor.  We have gone through this at each of the

Page 100

VERITEXT REPORTING COMPANY
212-267-6868 www.veritext.com 516-608-2400



WASHINGTON MUTUAL, INC., et al.

1 prior two confirmation hearings and I believe we also went

2 through it at each of the prior two disclosure statement

3 hearings.

4          We modified this plan specifically in accordance with

5 Your Honor's order and utilized language that Your Honor

6 approved to provide that nothing this court would do would

7 affect in any way, shape or form any direct claims that these

8 entities have.

9          Now they appear to want something more and what they

10 appear to want is something that they are (1) not entitled to

11 and (2) undermines the global settlement agreement and (3)

12 would undermine the plan.

13          What they appear to want is to have Your Honor rule

14 that the FDIC -- that WMB, which is a party to the global

15 settlement and agreement, can't release WMB's claims which is

16 an integral part of the global settlement agreement.  As Your

17 Honor knows, it's a divvying up of assets among multiple

18 entities including hundreds of millions of dollars going to the

19 WMB receivership in return for which what JPMorgan Chase gets

20 out of that is a release from WMB.

21          So, Your Honor, the language that exists already has a

22 full carve-out for direct claims that these individuals may

23 have.  The plan itself -- the global settlement agreement

24 provides that the WMB and WMI will release any claims,

25 derivative claims, or claims that they have against JPMorgan
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1 Chase but not any direct claims that the ANICO plaintiffs are

2 asserting.  That's in the GSA.  That's in the plan with a

3 specific carve-out for these individuals.

4          The language that they've asked you to include though

5 would directly undermine -- well, let me take a step back.  The

6 litigation, they hotly contest that they are asserting direct

7 claims, that they're not asserting derivative claims in that

8 litigation.  They haven't brought a claim, ANICO plaintiffs

9 derivatively on behalf of Washington Mutual Bank Receivership.

10 They've brought a claim of ANICO plaintiffs.  That claim is

11 preserved.

12          The language that they've offered to Your Honor as

13 alternative language says "Plaintiff's direct claims are claims

14 which the ANICO plaintiffs otherwise have standing to pursue."

15 What they're doing is suggesting well, maybe we'll try to see

16 if we can have standing to bring WMB's claims but at the

17 moment, the receiver of that has standing to maintain WMB's

18 claims and it's granting a release.

19          It also has D which says "nothing in this order would

20 affect a variety of different things," but again, what they've

21 proposed as added language in D would go directly to the

22 viability of the release that the FDIC is giving on behalf of

23 WMB which is integral to the global settlement agreement and

24 integral to the plan.

25          So what they are doing is attacking the global
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1 settlement agreement now and attacking the plan.  Your Honor

2 shouldn't tolerate this any longer.  We've accommodated every

3 possibility.  Nothing in this plan affects their rights to

4 assert their claims in the ANICO litigation or otherwise and

5 the objection should be overruled, Your Honor.

6          THE COURT:  Thank you.

7          MR. ROSEN:  Your Honor, I think Mr. Duke rose earlier

8 only to talk about the addition of his documents and he did not

9 present his objection at that time and I think he wants to do

10 that now.

11          THE COURT:  All right.

12          MR. DUKE:  William Duke, pro se.  Before I start, Your

13 Honor, I have a request.  Mr. Berg asked for a portion of

14 JPMorgan 10-K for 2011 be admitted to the record.

15          THE COURT:  Yes.

16          MR. DUKE:  Can that ruling be expanded to include the

17 whole 10-K?  Does anybody object?

18          MR. SACKS:  I think we before said that Your Honor --

19          THE COURT:  We wanted --

20          MR. SACKS:  -- to the extent you were taking it, we

21 object to relevance.  We should have the entirety of the

22 document, not the --

23          THE COURT:  Yes, the entirety is admitted.

24          MR. DUKE:  Is in.  All right.  Thank you, Your Honor.

25          THE COURT:  To the extent it's relevant.
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1          MR. DUKE:  In that case, Your Honor, there is a

2 portion in that document where JPMorgan describes and defines

3 their BOLI policy as -- and, you know, the use of it as an

4 additional vehicle as the point I was willing -- trying to make

5 with the document that was not admitted.  I unfortunately don't

6 have the capability right now to isolate that for you.  So I am

7 not going to argue it based on that.

8          But I would request the Court's indulgence that after

9 I finish addressing the points that Mr. Rosen made earlier,

10 that the Court would withhold ruling on my objection until I

11 can submit those documents which should be tomorrow morning at

12 the latest.

13          THE COURT:  No, I don't think that's necessary.

14          MR. DUKE:  You don't think that's necessary?  Should I

15 just go ahead and --

16          THE COURT:  Go ahead and make your argument.

17          MR. DUKE:  Okay.  First of all, let me address the

18 points that Mr. Rosen made in requesting that all of these

19 objections be dismissed.  He cited the examiner, I'm not sure

20 if that's hearsay or not, but it seems to be a popular person

21 to quote, so --

22          THE COURT:  Well, I am not considering the examiner's

23 report.

24          MR. DUKE:  Oh, I'm sorry.

25          THE COURT:  I ruled that it's ^4:13:25
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1 (indiscernible).

2          MR. DUKE:  Mr. Rosen used that in his objection.

3          THE COURT:  I know, but I am not going to consider it

4 at any rate.

5          MR. DUKE:  Okay.  All right.

6          THE COURT:  So you don't have to address it.

7          MR. DUKE:  It's just that they mention the atypical,

8 the top-heaviness of the BOLI funds.

9          THE COURT:  Uh-hum.

10          MR. DUKE:  And Mr. Rosen also in the section, the line

11 item 5, Alphabet capital B, Section 8, paragraph B, used that

12 to explain that the BOLI had been properly defined as per

13 someone else's objection and that section actually just

14 delineates the arguments back and forth between the debtor and

15 JPMorgan over the disposition of the BOLI.  It does not

16 actually define what the BOLI funds are.  So --

17          THE COURT:  Tell me why that's relevant, if the BOLI

18 funds are incorporated into the global settlement that has been

19 approved.

20          MR. DUKE:  Your Honor, the global settlement only

21 addresses policies.  There's nothing there about the funds

22 itself and the point that I hesitate to make, not having the

23 evidence in front of me, is that there are several components

24 of the BOLI funds and the policies themselves are a very small

25 component and based on the cash value of those policies,
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1 there's a substantial amount of investment money that did not

2 belong to the bank, that was, in fact, the responsibility of

3 WMI corporate support and treasury which went towards

4 supporting the benefit plans which JPMorgan specifically

5 declines to take in their BA.

6          So, even though we might all think that the BOLI fund

7 is comprised solely of the policies, it is not.  There are

8 approximately 965 policies that JPMorgan claims that have been

9 in existence according to the evidence I gave you from the WMI

10 case over the years.  There's approximately two billion dollars

11 invested by WMI from 1999 through 2006 and also these policies

12 have come into existence since that time.

13          Now to assume that the cash surrender value which is

14 much less than the face value of those policies would in eight

15 short years, let's say 2000 to 2008, actually develop to the

16 value of five million dollars each, cash surrender value, is

17 somewhat hyperbolic and it's a bit difficult to swallow.

18          So that's what the difference is between the policies

19 and the fund.  The fund itself is actually an investment

20 vehicle for the good of the holding company in total.  Those

21 some of those policies do recover WMB employees and I'm not

22 arguing that those should not go to JPMorgan --

23          THE COURT:  Well, but --

24          MR. DUKE:  -- but the --

25          THE COURT:  -- I already approved the settlement that
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1 gave them all to JPMorgan.

2          MR. DUKE:  You approved the settlement that gave them

3 the policies, Your Honor, not the entire fund and there are

4 different portions.

5          THE COURT:  Well, I think the releases between the

6 parties would cover any claim to the funds.

7          MR. DUKE:  There is an argument to be made that the

8 proceeds of those policies which is what they claim, only apply

9 to the cash surrender value.  So if they're going to willy-

10 nilly toss around billions of dollars, I think we should have

11 an opportunity to address before this court just exactly what

12 defines those billions of dollars.

13          THE COURT:  Well, I am not going to revisit the global

14 settlement.

15          MR. DUKE:  No, ma'am, I'm not asking you to revisit

16 the global settlement.  What I am asking you to do is consider

17 that there are billions of dollars that are in the care and

18 keeping of JPMorgan, although JPMorgan denies that they have

19 them and the support document that I indicated they say they

20 don't have them, they don't have use of them.  But the bank

21 statements do actually indicate that they've had them since

22 2008.

23          So, under the guise of transferring the policies, they

24 are transferring a considerable sum of money which are not

25 policies.  So if they want to keep the policies, I don't have
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1 an argument with that.  That's in the global settlement, that's

2 in the POR but I think we should take a hard look at the total

3 amount of the fund and see if there are not assets which can be

4 returned to the estate.

5          THE COURT:  All right, anything else?

6          MR. DUKE:  Your Honor, should I go ahead and isolate

7 that portion of the 10-K or has Your Honor decided that my

8 representation that it's there is sufficient?

9          THE COURT:  No, your representation is sufficient.

10          MR. DUKE:  In that case then, thank you, Your Honor.

11 Any questions?

12          THE COURT:  No, thank you.

13          MR. DUKE:  Thank you, Your Honor.

14          MR. BERG:  Thank you, Your Honor.  James Berg, pro se;

15 a very brief closing.  Your Honor, FDIC-Corporate and FDIC-

16 Receiver are two legally distinct entities as the FDIC-Receiver

17 has argued in the DC action.  They have not and cannot argue to

18 the contrary because they're collaterally estopped from arguing

19 a contrary position.

20          THE COURT:  I think you've already made this argument,

21 haven't you?

22          MR. BERG:  Yes.  Your Honor, this issue is really

23 simple.  FDIC-Corporate should not be granted releases since

24 they do not have a claim in this case.  They've not filed a

25 claim in this case.  They've not filed a claim in the DC action
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1 or a counterclaim in the DC action.  Nor is FDIC-Corporate

2 providing anything for those releases.

3          FDIC-Receiver has a claim, claim number 2140, and also

4 providing value in exchange for their own releases.  Thus,

5 FDIC-Receiver value cannot be used as consideration for FDIC-

6 Corporate.  This court has already ruled on the issue of

7 releases.  FDIC-Corporate does not qualify them under this

8 court's ruling.

9          Additionally, the debtors' release of FDIC-Corporate

10 would act to deprive all of the non-releasing creditors or

11 holders of equity interests of their ability to recover from

12 FDIC-Corporate those non-releasing parties.  The debtors have

13 asserted that non-releasing parties would reach all our claims

14 but this is obviously not true if FDIC-Corporate is released as

15 the plan proposes.  Thank you, Your Honor.

16          THE COURT:  Thank you.

17          MR. CALIFANO:  Good afternoon, Your Honor.  Tom

18 Califano, DLA Piper on behalf of the FDIC, both Corporate and

19 Receiver for these purposes.

20          Your Honor, I'll be very brief.  I'm surprised that at

21 this point we still have to argue issues related to the global

22 settlement agreement which is soon to be over two years old.

23 Simply out, Your Honor, the FDIC-Corporate did not file claims

24 but the FDIC-Corporate was a defendant in the DC action that

25 the debtors brought to prosecute their receivership proof of
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1 claim.

2          The releases granted to the FDIC-Corporate as part of

3 the global settlement agreement were a core consideration for

4 the FDIC in accepting the settlement agreement.  They're an

5 integral part of the settlement agreement.  We've had testimony

6 here several times.  It's a unitary agreement and is a core

7 part of the consideration for the FDIC to consent to the global

8 settlement agreement.

9          THE COURT:  Thank you.

10          MR. CALIFANO:  Thank you, Your Honor.

11          MR. MATACHE:  Florin Matache again.  I would like to

12 address the Court on my objection.

13          THE COURT:  Yes.

14          MR. MATACHE:  My objection is mainly on behalf of

15 individual PIERS holders in Class 16.  There's, I guess, my

16 first argument would have been to the absolute priority rule

17 and I know that the vote was addressed, I guess at issue, so I

18 will leave that for now.  Maybe I will talk about the vote a

19 little later on.

20          The second argument was the delay in this case, the

21 mediation that took place and how were the PIERS or -- well, in

22 my case, I guess, individual PIERS holders, how they have been

23 harmed by the delay without any fault whatsoever to their

24 causes, the actual court, I or other similarly situated were

25 not involved any sort of questionable trading activities.  We
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1 were the minority in that group.

2          The mediation that resulted and deal that came out of

3 the mediation, gave absolutely no relief to holders, individual

4 holders, such as myself, while others benefitted.  In fact, the

5 opposite happened; individual PIERS holders were harmed yet

6 again, not only by the delay created by -- but also by having

7 to give up additional value from their recovery, specifically I

8 guess I am talking about the reorganized common stock value

9 that was originally due to creditors.

10          So, I'll just go, I guess, and list the values that

11 were lost in December of 2010 when we had the first

12 confirmation hearing.  The recovery for the PIERS class was

13 about -- it ended up at about 588 million or sixty-two percent

14 and the Court, of course, denied confirmation of the plan due

15 to, among other things, improper releases and concerns about

16 allegations of insider trading against the settlement

17 noteholders or AAOC, as they're known.

18          A modified sixth amendment plan was proposed, the

19 estimated recovery dropped for that plan to forty-six percent.

20 Because there were delays for litigation and discovery against

21 AAOC, the recoveries were adjusted again to twenty-eight

22 percent and the Court denied confirmation of that plan and

23 granted the standing motion with respect to the plans for

24 equitable disallowance.

25          After that September opinion, the debtors filed a
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1 statement that included a fourth modification of a modified

2 sixth amendment joint plan in draft form and then my objection,

3 as Exhibit A, the liquidation analysis, waterfall recovery

4 matrix, showed an estimated recovery for the PIERS class of 271

5 million or thirty-three percent of total and the effective date

6 was October 31, 2011.  The debtor said there's no vote needed

7 if that were to go ahead again because the recovery were -- was

8 not lower for the PIERS class at that point.

9          Of course, that didn't happen.  The Court ordered

10 certain parties to participate in mediation and on December 12,

11 the debtors filed their seventh amended joint plan and in my

12 objection at Exhibit B, the liquidation analysis, waterfall

13 recovery matrix, shows for that plan, estimated recovery for

14 the PIERS of seventy-four million or nine percent of total and

15 an effective date of February 29, 2012.

16          THE COURT:  All right.  Your argument is?

17          MR. MATACHE:  My argument is that I really never saw

18 the previous delays, we see that the result of mediation for

19 the PIERS class meant an additional loss of almost 200 million

20 dollar and then the resulting recovery was approximately

21 seventy percent less than what it was when the mediation

22 started.  And the important thing to note is that the PIERS

23 class is the only class that experienced a loss.

24          THE COURT:  Okay.  I understand.

25          MR. MATACHE:  All other classes, even after -- for
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1 senior classes, even after the contribution they are making to

2 junior stakeholders or shareholders, their recovery is still

3 greater, although not by a large amount, but still greater than

4 compared to what it was when mediation started.

5          THE COURT:  Well, I think the problem though is I did

6 not confirm the prior plan.  I found it could not be confirmed

7 and you could not get the recovery that you thought you should

8 get under that.

9          MR. MATACHE:  I am only talking about after Your

10 Honor's opinion when the debtors were -- filed the proposed

11 plan that mediation be dealt separate and proceed with the

12 confirmation --

13          THE COURT:  Well that plan isn't before me.

14          MR. MATACHE:  That -- no, I understand.  What I am

15 arguing is the mediation and the delay benefitted everyone else

16 except the PIERS class.

17          THE COURT:  Okay.

18          MR. MATACHE:  And I was just trying to show some

19 amounts comparing to what would have happened --

20          THE COURT:  All right.

21          MR. MATACHE:  -- had Your Honor considered to go on, I

22 guess, a bifurcated confirmation and mediation separately.

23          Another argument that I have is then that estate

24 assets were improperly used to settle the disputes in

25 mediation.  The seventy million dollar value going to more
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1 junior stakeholders as part of this new plan is now listed as a

2 contribution.  It's part of the waterfall but it was never part

3 of the waterfall going to junior stakeholders.  It was part of

4 the waterfall before going to creditors and as Mr. Goulding

5 just testified today, answering my question, that value now

6 ends up instead of going to creditors, it ends up with the

7 junior stakeholders as part of the deal reached in mediation.

8          We clearly know that there was a gap.  Estate assets

9 did not reach shareholders of the junior stakeholders previous

10 to mediation or this deal we have in the October 6 transcript,

11 statements by Mr. Hodara saying that the shareholders are

12 parties that are at the moment, out of the money.  We also have

13 Mr. Rosen making statements that the gap before it reaches

14 below Class 16 would be eighty-two million dollars.

15          So then, I'll move on to a separate argument.

16 Individual PIERS holders have claims against AAOC, just as the

17 equity committee did.  Now I know that as part of the plan,

18 they are given releases, so I suppose that someone -- a PIERS

19 holder that did grant releases would not have a claim if Your

20 Honor confirms the plan and confirms the releases as they are

21 in the plan.

22          But then the question is what happens to the holders

23 that do not grant the release?  As part of my objection to the

24 motion to vacate, which seeks to vacate the language in the

25 opinion stating that the equity committee has standing to --
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1 and there are colorable claims, both the debtors and Your Honor

2 stated that someone who wants to bring a claim against AAOC can

3 still do that.

4          THE COURT:  Okay.

5          MR. MATACHE:  Now, my argument is this is claim of the

6 debtors' estate, just as it was for the equity committee.  Of

7 course, just as before, the debtors refused to pursue these

8 claims and it was even part of Your Honor's opinion on page 108

9 of the September opinion.  The Court finds through the debtors'

10 support of the settlement, noteholders opposition to the equity

11 committee motion that the debtors have refused to pursue the

12 equitable subordination or disallowance claim.

13          At the same time, the creditors committee that is

14 fiduciary or part of the PIERS, it takes the same position.

15 So, although Your Honor did not rule in the September opinion

16 on equitable subordination because it's not an available relief

17 for the equity committee, such remedy is available and can help

18 individual PIERS holders that are considered creditors of the

19 estate.  Again, this remedy was not pursued by any of the

20 fiduciaries of the PIERS and this leads to a conclusion that

21 individual PIERS holders did not have representation in respect

22 to these matters.

23          This will also explain as why part of mediation, the

24 PIERS ended up with no relief and instead lost additional value

25 and as such, the proposed plan that embodies the deal reaching
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1 mediation is unfair and unreasonable to the individual PIERS

2 holders and should not be confirmed unless appropriate action

3 is taken and just relief is given to such holders.

4          THE COURT:  Okay.

5          MR. MATACHE:  Again, I guess an argument to

6 representation appointed or perhaps an argument on reserve for

7 those claims or some other similar or appropriate relief, if

8 Your Honor can give an indication in as part of your

9 confirmation order, I will accept that.  I mean but if the

10 rules are that it has to be argued on a separate hearing, then

11 that's what I am asking the Court to do, as well, so we can

12 decide this matter because it is an asset of the debtors'

13 estate and no one is pursuing it.

14          THE COURT:  Well, it's being released.

15          MR. MATACHE:  That's true but not everyone, including

16 myself, is giving that releases -- that release.

17          THE COURT:  Well, a release of your claim is not being

18 released but the estate's claim is being released.

19          MR. MATACHE:  But it's --

20          THE COURT:  And the Court can't appoint a lawyer for

21 an individual creditor to pursue that individual creditor's

22 claims.

23          MR. MATACHE:  Well, so I guess I'll still want to

24 argue that based on the fact that the equity committee has

25 representation and they are being paid by the estate.  I don't
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1 see the difference and I mean, you are saying that the debtors

2 claim is released, however my claim is to the debtor -- the

3 estate and just as the equity from, you know, the shareholders

4 have a claim for the debtors' estate --

5          THE COURT:  No, the equity committee was representing

6 all of the shareholders.

7          MR. MATACHE:  Right.

8          THE COURT:  Not one.

9          MR. MATACHE:  And Your Honor granted them the standing

10 motion due to the fact --

11          THE COURT:  And they settled that matter for all

12 shareholders.  The debtor is settling it for all creditors.

13          MR. MATACHE:  But they all will -- I mean the only

14 reason they were able to pursue that and be paid for it was

15 because Your Honor ruled that everyone else refused to pursue

16 it.  Otherwise, they wouldn't be able to pursue it or get paid

17 for it, so I don't --

18          THE COURT:  Well, the debtor did --

19          MR. MATACHE:  -- if only receive the difference.

20          THE COURT:  The debtor didn't pursue it because the

21 debtor didn't feel there was a claim.

22          MR. MATACHE:  Right.

23          THE COURT:  So --

24          MR. MATACHE:  But Your Honor did.

25          THE COURT:  I said there was a colorable claim.
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1          MR. MATACHE:  Right.

2          THE COURT:  I didn't say there was a claim.  I said it

3 was colorable, and therefore there was standing for the

4 committee to investigate it further and file a lawsuit if

5 appropriate but that has been settled.

6          MR. MATACHE:  And wouldn't the same relief be

7 available to an individual PIERS holder?

8          THE COURT:  Not to an individual, no, no.  If you have

9 a direct claim, it's not being released but the Court will not

10 appoint an attorney for an individual claimant to pursue its

11 claims against third-parties.

12          MR. MATACHE:  Well, I mean I guess not being of the

13 legal profession, I am not sure how to properly argue it but if

14 Your Honor would put up with me to argue that on my own that,

15 you know, I will do it.  But then there -- we'll still have to

16 talk about a -- some sort of a -- I guess a reserve or holdback

17 or another appropriate remedy for such claims.

18          THE COURT:  These are claims against people that are

19 not the debtor.  I only deal with claims against the debtor or

20 that the debtor has against others.

21          MR. MATACHE:  And all --

22          THE COURT:  A claim you feel you might have against

23 somebody else is not within my jurisdiction and I won't hear

24 it.

25          MR. MATACHE:  Again --
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1          THE COURT:  And I won't appoint an attorney for you to

2 pursue it.

3          MR. MATACHE:  Again, I am confused.  So, if a deal

4 would not -- have not been reached in mediation, would then the

5 equity committee not be allowed to pursue these claims against

6 AAOC?

7          THE COURT:  Not on behalf of an individual shareholder

8 but on behalf of all shareholders and the estate, yes, I gave

9 them authority to do it.

10          MR. MATACHE:  And they would do it under Your Honor's

11 jurisdiction in this court.

12          THE COURT:  Yes, on behalf of the estate and all

13 creditors and shareholders.

14          MR. MATACHE:  And individual --

15          THE COURT:  Not on behalf of an individual.

16          MR. MATACHE:  Again, I am not talking about paying for

17 an attorney but pursuing the claim, why would it not be under

18 Your Honor's jurisdiction?

19          THE COURT:  Well, I am not going to explain the law to

20 you but I don't have jurisdiction over a direct claim you may

21 have against somebody else who is not in this -- who is not a

22 debtor in this case.  Okay?  Anything else?

23          MR. MATACHE:  Yes, there's one other issue and that is

24 a provision available to a PIERS holder that's equitable

25 subrogation rights.  And the indentured trustee actually did --
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1 made this argument on the previous confirmation hearing and

2 made -- also made reservation of rights under this plan that

3 basically, the subrogation rights from my understanding is it

4 would allow the PIERS class to recover beyond the cap that's

5 right now part of the plan.  There's a maximum recovery that

6 recovers a cap to a maximum of 250 million dollars and I'll

7 just read from my objection that "The purpose of subrogation,

8 whether by operation of law or contract is to prevent unjust

9 enrichment.  I gave some references to other cases that deal

10 with this issue.  For example, the doctrine of subrogation is

11 designed to dispense equity and justice among parties, Federal

12 Insurance Company v. Arthur Anderson Company in a New York

13 court.  In this manner, subrogation aims to avoid a windfall

14 gain to the subragor.  And also, I guess it states that "The

15 courts recognize the distinction between the action of

16 equitable relief or subrogation and equitable remedy which

17 arises by operation of law to prevent unjust enrichment and the

18 conventional subrogation which relies on contractual terms.

19 But nonetheless, it is well-established that equitable

20 principles govern subrogation, whether the right arises by

21 operation of law or through contract."

22          So, while my argument is that due to the subrogation

23 provisions available, and a consideration of equitable

24 principles in the case, would allow individual PIERS holders to

25 retain a recovery beyond that maximum.  Now, the indentured
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1 trustee in his reservation of rights appears to say that he is

2 inclined to do just that after confirmation.  Although, I am

3 not understanding exactly how that mechanism would be taken.  I

4 guess he might file a partial appeal.  I don't even know if he

5 -- what Your Honor's opinion on that is and what -- how it

6 influences recoveries, I guess to the junior classes if the

7 PIERS class can recover beyond the 250 million cap.  We are

8 looking at an additional 600 million that can be recovered

9 until the PIERS class can be made whole.

10          I would think that would affect lower classes, so I am

11 not sure -- I guess I would like to -- some sort of

12 clarification how that's going to take place or if it's going

13 to take place.  I guess the indentured trustee said may or may

14 not do it --

15          THE COURT:  Okay.

16          MR. MATACHE:  -- which I am not sure why that is.  I

17 would think Your Honor would want to know at this time what the

18 deposition is in respect to that.

19          THE COURT:  All right.  Anything else?  I'm going to

20 have to break shortly.

21          MR. MATACHE:  I think that's pretty much it; just let

22 me look over a little bit.  Well, actually again just going to

23 this issue of subrogation, it -- because it's an issue that

24 considers equitable principles in the case, my argument would

25 be that it should not be available to holders of PIERS that are
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1 AAOC and even though Your Honor is considering vacating any

2 sort of mention of their questionable actions in this case,

3 Your Honor did state to me at that hearing that the Court's --

4 I mean Your Honor is not changing what your consideration of

5 the facts that occurred.  So I guess I would like to argue that

6 it should be available to the rest of the PIERS class and that

7 an additional argument that it should be actually available,

8 even under this plan because Your Honor in the September's

9 opinion, when ruling on the interest rate, if it's appropriate

10 to use federal judgment rate, so as an initial matter your

11 opinion said it is the federal judgment rate, not to

12 considerations or equities of the case but additionally, also

13 stated that even if the equities of the case are considered,

14 it's -- even under that standard, the federal judgment rate is

15 appropriate, so there was a consideration by Your Honor that's

16 already part of the case that consideration of equities in this

17 case would lead to I guess specific treatment.

18          So again, I'm only saying this because the indentured

19 trustee did not make his position clear in his pursuing this

20 course of action to recover beyond the cap.  He's just saying I

21 am -- he might do it, he might not do it.  So, I would like to

22 argue that it's actually available now and if anyone wants to

23 argue otherwise, they can do so.

24          THE COURT:  All right.  Thank you.

25          MR. MATACHE:  Thank you very much.
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1          THE COURT:  I'm going to have to break and we'll have

2 to come back tomorrow morning.

3          MR. BERG:  No, Your Honor, I only have a one minute

4 point if it would be possible.

5          THE COURT:  If it doesn't repeat what you already did

6 say.

7          MR. BERG:  Your Honor, James Berg, pro se.  I would

8 have not expected it in my wildest dreams but Mr. Califano just

9 made my point for me.  He confirmed that WMI's claim against

10 FDIC-Corporate and then appears to have confirmed with this

11 court his intention to use FDIC-Receiver's claims against this

12 estate as consideration for FDIC-Corporate's releases.  This

13 cannot be allowed as they are separate, legally distinct

14 entities.

15          Again, FDIC-Corporate is not providing anything for

16 those releases.  This court has already ruled on the issue of

17 third-party releases when no consideration is being provided.

18 It has already ruled that those releases must be denied without

19 consideration.  Thank you, Your Honor, that is in my final

20 point.

21          THE COURT:  All right.  Thank you.

22          MR. ROSEN:  Your Honor, may I ask if anyone on the

23 phone has any objections?  If not, I think a brief --

24          THE COURT:  I --

25          MR. ROSEN:  -- very quickly, right now.
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1          THE COURT:  In five minutes?

2          MR. ROSEN:  Your Honor, if we could just ask that one

3 question?

4          THE COURT:  Is there any further objection from any of

5 the parties on the phone?

6          MS. DZIOK:  Yes, there is, Your Honor.  This is

7 Catherine Dziok, pro se.

8          THE COURT:  Spell your name, please.

9          MS. DZIOK:  C-A-T-H-E-R-I-N-E  D-Z-I-O-K.

10          THE COURT:  Yes.

11          MS. DZIOK:  I just wanted to speak very briefly

12 concerning my limited objection to the solicitation materials

13 and voting.  We had spoken briefly about this concerning

14 problems with voting and shareholders receiving their

15 solicitation packages and again here we are with our fourth

16 vote and the plethora of problems that have existed with

17 previous votes have continued to exist.  So many shareholders

18 have not received their materials.  There's had to be

19 extensive, extensive networking among shareholders in order to

20 receive those because so many of them were not delivered by the

21 nominees and of those delivered by the nominees, the

22 instructions were so confusing.  So many people had no idea

23 where to send them, so there was a significant number of

24 incorrectly submitted ballots.

25          But I was also was concerned, too, our -- the
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1 population of shareholders that don't follow this case and that

2 don't follow the boards and have no idea that this is going on

3 and they, too have not received materials.  To date, even one

4 of my brokers has not sent me anything.  So again, I would just

5 like to bring this matter to the Court's attention that we

6 continue to have significant problems, though the parties, the

7 debtors and the equity committee has helped to resolve some of

8 them, this vote has not gone on any more smoothly than previous

9 votes and I ask you to take that into consideration.  Thank

10 you.

11          THE COURT:  Thank you.

12          MR. ROSEN:  Your Honor, I have one minute of response

13 to everyone.

14          THE COURT:  But I am not going to be able to rule in

15 the one minute.  So, I would like you to consider everybody's

16 argument and come back and give me ten minutes of argument in

17 the morning.

18          MR. ROSEN:  Okay, Your Honor.  What time?

19          THE COURT:  9:30.

20          MR. ROSEN:  Thank you.

21          THE COURT:  All right.  I will see the parties at

22 9:30.

23      (Whereupon these proceedings were concluded at 4:52 p.m.)

24

25
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